Created with a trial version of Syncfusion Essential PDF

TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI
ANONIM SIRKETI
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the Year Ended
31 December 2017
With Independent Auditors’ Report

27 April 2018

This report contains 3 pages of independent
aeditors’ report on consolidiated financial
slatement amd {4 pages of consolldated
Jimancial  statements  and  notes  io the
consadicdated financial statemenis,




Table of Contents

Fages
Independent Auditors™ Report
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position -7
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 59
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equiry 111
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows |2

Modes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [4-109




wry Badiiiud Daneden ve Ted: +%] 117 1000
S A G Fawx- «50 212 ZI0 8371
i vt [ Mg hg I Bidyii ke oo
] T

Buillding & better By G P nla ke Packs e Y
weorking worid aar rpat I B5

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

To the Board of Directors of Tirkiye Smai Kalkinma Bankasi A.S.:

COualifled Dpinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Titrkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A.5. (the
“Bank”) and itz subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of ether comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting pulicies.

[n our opinion, except for the effects of the matter on the consolidated financial statements described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {[FR5),

Hasis for qualified opinion

As explained in Note 26, the accompanying consolidated financial statements as at 3] December maz
include a free reserve for possible risks amounting to TL 60.000 thousand, which is provided by the Group
Management for possible results of the circumstances which may arise from possible changes in the
economy and market conditions. In addition to that; a deferred tax asset is provided based on this reserve
amounting to TL 13200 thousand in the accompanying consolidated financial stutements as at 3]
December 2017. Due to this provision which does not meet the accounting principles of TAS 37, the net
incame a3 of 31 December 2017 is understated by TL 46 800 thousand, the other provisions and deferred
Lax assets are overstated by TL 60.000 thousand and TL 13.200 thousand, respectively,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (154s), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Turkey, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiomal judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whaole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Cualified Opinion
section we have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our repaort.

Fmpairment af loans and advarces

Loans and advances to customers and lease receivables are key areas of Jjudgement for the management.
There is a potential risk that loans and advances to customers and lease receivables are impaired and no
reasonable impairment losses are provided in accordance with the requirements of IFRS as determining
the adequacy of impairment allowance on loans and advances to customers and lease receivables are key
areas of judgement for the management.  Accordingly, carrying amount of loans and advances to
customers and lease receivables might be greater than the estimated recoverable amounts, therefore the
impairment test of these loans of advances and lease receivables are key audit matters. Related
Explanations relating to the impairment of loans and receivables have been disclosed in Naote 26,

Our audit procedures included among others, selecting samples of loans and advances based on our
Judgement and considering whether there is ohjective evidence that impairment exists on these loans and
receivables and the assessment of impairment losses of loans and receivables were reasonably determined
in accordance with the requirements of IFRS. In addition we considered, assessed and tested the relevant
controls over granting, booking, menitoring and settlement, and those relating to the calculation of credit
provisions, to confirm the operating effectiveness of the key controls in place, which identify the impaired
loans and receivables and the required provisions apainst them.

Pension Fund Obligations

The valuation of the Pension Fund lisbilities requires judgment in determining appropriate assumptions
such as defining the transferrable social benefits, discount rates, salary increases, demographic
assumptions, inflation rate estimates and the impact of any changes in individual pension plans, The Bank
Management uses Fund actuaries to assist in assessing these assumptions.

Considering the subjectivity of key assumptions and estimate used in the caleulations of transferrable
liahilities and the effects of the potential chanmes in the estimates used together with the uncertainty
around the transfer date and given the fact that technical interest rate |s prescribed under the law, we
considered this to be a kev audit matter,

It has been addressed whether there have been any significant changes in regulations governing pension
lizbilities, employee benefits plans during the period, that could lead to adjust the valuation of employee
benefits.

Support from actuarial auditor who is in the same audit network within our firm. has been taken o 255L55
the appropristeness of the actuarial assumptions and calculations performed by the external actuary. We
further focused on the accuracy and adequacy of the deficit and also disclosures on key assumptions
related to pension fund.
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Derivative Financiaf Trextrements

Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, cumrency and interest rate swaps,
currency and interest rate options, futures and other derivative financial instruments which are held for
trading are initially recognized on the statement of financial position at fair value and subsequently are
re-measured at their fair value. Details of related amounts are explained in differences related to derivative
financial assets/liabilities held-for-trading disclosures.

Fair value of the derivative financial instruments is determined by selecting most convenient market data
and applying valvation techniques to those particular derivative products. Derivative Financial
Instruments are considered by us as a key audit matter becavse of the subjectivity in the estimates,
assumptions and judgements used.

Our audit procedures involve obtaining written confirmations from the third parties and comparing the
details of the related derivative transactions. Our audit procedures included among others involve
reviewing policies regarding fair value measurement accepted by the bank management fair value
calculations of the sclected derivative financial instruments which is carried out by valuation experts in
our audit team and the assessment of used estimations and the judgements and testing of operating
effectiveness of the key controls in the process of fair value determination.

Our procedures included, amongst others, recalculating fair value caleulation and disclosures relating to
derivative financial instruments considering the requirements of International Accounting Standards
("IAS5") and International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS").

Oiher Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2016 were audited by anather
independent audit firm, who expressed an unqualified opinion in their audit reports dated April 24, 2017.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the consolidated fnancial statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary

to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Croup’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing concern

and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
OF to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Group’s financial reporting process,
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Auditor's responsibilitics for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
awdit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform aedit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
overtide of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Director's use of the going concern hasis of
accovnting and, based on the awdit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a poing concern. IF we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclesions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease lo continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation,

Oibtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitics or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.



We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit,

We alsa provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report becavse the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement pariner who supervised and concluded this independent auditor's report is Yagar Bivas.

Giiney Bafimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhaseheci Mali Misavirdik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Emnst & Young Global Limited

Yaszar Bivas
Partner, SMMM

Istanbul, Turkey
April 27,2018



TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AS AND ITS SURBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT 31 DECEMBER 2017

fAdmounars exproseed im thoasends of Tunkish Cieg (TLE wedess orbiersise fioaled)

M December M December

ASSETS Notes 27 206
Cash om hand i 24 29
Balances with central bank 7 15,433 163,271
Reserve deposits at central bank 7 811,678 612,776
Loans and advances to banks 8 493 687 497 949
Interbank money market placements B - 254,033
Funds lent under repurchase agreements 6 3 el H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 336,093 87,037

- Treadimyr fioncencial assels g LR 1 13,001

= Derivative financial instraments gl J26 788 374036
Loans and advances to customers 10 22,304,828 17,343,122
Investment securitics i1 4638479 4,449,700

=Aviilable for sale fnvestment securities 2925 [82 28580118

-Availahle for sale fnvesmment securities as pledped 171250 2i2 633

-Held ro matwrity irvestment securities 070 060 £.245945

=Iefol o mentier ity frvestment securities ax pledped 552078 129784
Derivative assets held for hedging purposes 16 - 272
Investments in equity-accounted investees 2 374425 32922
Gcdwill 13 383 183
Propesty, plant and equipment 14 245,798 231,327
Investment property 15 243,145 231,323
Intangible assets [ 6 2,580 2,094
Deferred tax assets 22 13.530 2685
Chbeer assets 17 304 504 361,680
Total assels 20,794,650 24,863,504

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these conselidated financial statements.
L}



TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI A AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

[Amouwnts expressed in thowrardy of Turkish Lirg [TE) walers anbenaioe statedy

31 December 31 December
LIARILITIES Notes 2017 016
Ohligations under repurchase agreements I8 610,775 205,334
Derivative liabilities k1. 232403 I Ta7
Funds borrowed 9 190010627 16,127,496
Debts securities issued 20 1,746,229 3,486,732
Pavables to money muarket 25 T01.147 Cal, BED
Current account of koan customers 12,901 5317
Derivative liabilities held for hedging purposes 36 78682 51,433
Taxes and dues payable 9086 6,713
Employvee benefiis 23 24,880 21,813
Caorporate tax liability 22 43.662 3,066
Provisions 26 63,343 0E2
Chher liabilities 21 178,282 181684
Subordinated loan 24 .14a.236 .
Total liabilities e 1550150 21,465,247
EQUITY
Share capital
MNominal paid in capital 27 2,400,000 2,050,004
Inflation adjustment o capital 7 13,563 13.563
Total capital 2413503 206831 %61
Share premium 478 428
Legal reserves 241,758 216827
Fair value reserve (24.630) (65,858}
Revaluation reserve 214,231 20047
_Retained eamnings 1,046,427 923,311
Total equity attributable to ayuity holders of the Bank 3,591,772 3. 340,188
Mon-gcontrolling inferesds 7 52719 57,069
Total equity 3944491 3,398,257
Total liabilities amd equity : 20794 650 24 863 504
Commitments and contingencies 35 49,139,855 44,437,712

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated linancial slatements.



TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L0555 AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 1017

fdmanrars eepeessed b thouzaeds of Teebioh Liva (TL] wnless eifrerine staied)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 December

Notes 2m? 2016
Ineerest income
Interest income on loans and advances 1o customers 1,304 800 556,109
Interess on money market placements 31,435 162, %70
Interest income on sedurities 432,988 353,658
Interest income on loans and advances to banks f5,034 12 .ela
Interesd income an reserve deposit at central bank 1617 3371
Interest income on finance leases 1,659 7
__Urher interest income 1289 g3
_Tuotal interest income 1,873,821 1,409,679
Interest expensas
Irterest expenss an obligations under repurchase
pgreements and meney market borrowings {233,328) {237 442)
Interest expense on fimds borrowed {339,360 (263,390)
Interest expense on debt securities Bswed (262.843) (1498310
Crther interest cxpenses (912) . {212}
Total interest expense (856,.543) (65LBTH)
Met interest income _lmTIT TSR R0Y
Fee and commission income 24 51,752 16,387
Fee and commission expenas 28 (11.0%0% {11,370}
‘el Tee and commission income 41,661 15,017
Securiies rading invome, net 5831 3832
Derivative trading income / (losses), net (209,793 Bad
_Foreign exchange gains ¢ {loases), net 138914 {72.46T)
Met trading income | (hs) (hS,028) [47.771)
Met impairment loss on financiol assets 19 1781400 (9.49T)
Diperating income after impairment ksscs 816,773 T, 552
Crbser operating income E11] 13546 13.653
{Mher opeTating expenses 32 (170, 158) {168, 78T
Diividend income 3 5421 [ 1486
Share of profit of equity-accounted investess 12 _AkRal 18,803
Profit before income tax o TI941E 6709
[veome tay expense 22 (145 980) (12RO
Frofit for the vear ERYA3S LR0.608

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TURKIVE SINAT KALKINMA BANKAST AS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2017

fAmouns expressed fn Sausardy of Turkish Lira (TE) anlesy athervire stated)

I January — I Jamuary —
31 December 31 December
Motes mT 2016
Profit fer the year 283,435 480 698
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or hoss
Femeasurement of employes termination benefits (380 B43
Revaluation of angible assets 16,315 26,703
Related tax (20311 (280}
13,904 17,268
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Met change in farr value of available-for-sale financial
asseds 37 548 {48,300
Met change in Faar value of avaikabbe-for-sale financial
asseds iransfermed to profit or loss {303} 3402
Equity=accounted mvestees = share of OC] 7.264 [6,965)
Related tax (AE803%} 0710
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of fax 55.608 {14,569
Total comprehensive income for the year 639,043 465819
Profit attribatable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 189,137 4E% 223
Mon-controlling imterests 2T {5,702} (T.525)
Frofit fur the year F83.433 AR0698
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity helders of the Bank R E e 473,350
Mon-controlling interesis z7 {5.256) (7.521)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 639043 465829
Earmings per share
Basic earnings per share (in full Keruog) 3% 2414 023g2

The sccompany ing nodes form an integral pant of these consolidated NMnancial statemenis.
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TURKIYE SINAI KALKINMA BANKAST AS AND ITS SUBSIIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2017

A mours expresied im thousoads of Tarkish Lier (TL) umless coberieize siated

3 Degenuber 31 Degember

Motes 17 216
Cash News frem pperating wctivities:
Interesis and commissions received 631,542 I 108 882
Interesis and commissions paid 1046,414) | S, 23D
ither operaling activilies, net 206, 357 658,512
Cash paymenis o employees and supplicrs {122 637) {128,739
Liividends received 420 11,486
(kperating profit hefore changes im operating nssets / linbilities Q65D 1083186
{Increase)decrease in pperating assets:
[.oans and advances b customers [X.839,528) [E.387,.620)
Balances with cenral bamka [217.9u%) 154,74
Flnancial assers o falr vabue through profli or boss: 4851 20,513
[kher assets 63,340 (87,5410
[Inerease)detrense |m aperating labillibes:
Funds barroowved 639937 [RERE {1
Cibligagiona under repurchase apreements and money market fundings 254w (1,094,281
ey [iabilities 34,4200 i 16.R08]
Met cash imflows ! sutflows from operating activites before taxes
gnd duties paid i1,350.748) 11, 322.045)
Incame Lanes and other dulies paid (122.634) [LA5.445)
Net cash_inflows | omtflowd from eperating activities ALATEIRE] (145740
Cash Mows from invesling aclivities:
Cash poid for purchose of invesiment securities (THLTET 11.00L141)
Cash obdained From szle of investment securilics ERT.304 65X Adb
Purchase ol invesAmenis in eguity participatxin - [ LANHE
Proceeds frosm sale of tanglble asas i 0
Purchase of fanpible nsseis (4. THp (405 )
{kher (1,282} (LR LT]
Med el owtflows [rn-m irw!.-.l.liut mcEividies TR HEY (IS5, 52}
Cash flows from fimancing activities
liscrease | o amd advances from banks and oler st LT3, LM e
Drisddends paid ARG 151,839
Met cavh imflnws fram ﬁllllil‘ll activities QR 199 Rl AT
Effect of pachange rate changes LR 440,908
Mt dnerease In cash amd ¢ash equivabents [ 408,603 ) {UE5 9
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January I . | 1T LHEH.IIS
Cash and cash equivabents at 3 December i S0d. 4% 91241

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated Gnancial statements.
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3 Significant accounting policies 17
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11  Investment securities 70
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28 Net fee and commission income 97
2% Net Impairment loss on financial assets 97
30 Other operating income 98
31 Dividend income S
J21 Other operaling expenses o8
33 Segment reporting o4
34 Related parties [0l
35 Commitments and contingencies {5
36 Derivative financial instruments [k
37 Dividends (07
38  Eamings per share g
39 Ratings {1}
40 Ewvents after the reporting period 09
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REFORTING ENTITY

Thirkive Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A% (“TSKB™ or the “Bank™) was established on 31 May 1930 with the
suppont of the World Bank and the cooperation of the Government of the Republic of Turkey, the Central
Bank of Turkey and the leading Turkish commercial hanks of Turkey. TSKB is the first investment and
development bank of Turkey. TSKB is operating with the mission of providing assistance to private
sector enterprises in all sectors of the economy primarily in the industrial sector, encouraging and
assisting the participation of private and foreign capital incorporations established and to be established
in Turkey, and assisting the development of the capital markets in Turkey. TSKB and Smai Yatnm
Bankas: A% (“5¥B™), sister bank with similar mission, were merged pursuant to the decisions of the
respective shareholders as sanctiomed by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA")
decision noc 659 dated 27 March 20002, in accordance with Article 18 of the Banking Act no: 4389, The
registered office of the Bank is at Meclisi Mebusan Cad. 81 Finchikl, Istanbul, Turkey.

The Bank and its subsidiaries are in referred to as the “Group™.

TSKDB started its sctivities in 1930 fnancing the private sector invesiments in Turkey and today it
provides loans and project finance with the goal of sustainable development to corporations in different
fields, As a leader in meeting the long term finance needs of the private sector, TSKB also continues o
offer solutions with respect to the newest needs and client demands. Furthermore, through offering the
equity shares of such companies to the public, TSKB has been a significant milestone in this field and
thus assumed a prominent and vital rode in fostering the development of capital markets. The main
sharcholders of TSKH are T, I3 Bankasi Group and T. Vakiflar Bankas: T_A (). with the percentages of
50.71% and 8.38%, respectively (31 December 2016: 50.65% and 8.38%, respectively). The Bank's
shares are traded in Borsa Istanbul (“BIST™).

The Bank has opened two branches in lzmir and Ankara in Apnl 20806 to enhonce marketing and
valuation operations.

Tiirkive 15 Bankas: A 5. is the controlling party of the Parent Bank's capital having bath direct and
indirect qualified shares.

Information about the consolidated subsidiaries
Yatinm Finansman Menkul Degerler A%

Y atmm Finansman Menkul Degerler AS was established and registered with Istanbul Trade Registry
on 15 October 1976 and it was announced in the Turkish Trade Repistry Gazette Mo: 81 on 23
October 1976, The company’s ohjective 15 to perform copital market operations specified in the
company ' s main contract in accordance with the Capital Markets Board ("CMB™) and the related
legislation. The company was merged with TSKDE Menkul Degerler AS on 29 December 2006, The
share of the Bank in the Company is 95.78%.

TSKB Gayrimenkul Yatrm Ohriakligh A%

The core business of TSKB Gayrimenkul Yatinim Ortakli@n AS is real estate trust to construct and
develop a portfolio of properties and invest in capital market instruments linked to properties. The
company was established on 3 February 2006. The company s shares are iraded in BIST since April
2010, The share of the Bank in the Company 15 39.04%.
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REPORTING ENTITY (continued)
Information about the equity accounted associates
Is Finansal Kiralama AS

I Finansal Kiralama AS was established on 8 February 1988 and it has been performing its operations
in accordance with the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law No: 6361, The
company started its leasing operations in July 1998, The company’s headquasters is located at
Istanbul Turkey. The share of the Bank in the Company is 28.56%,

Is Faktoring AS

Is Faktoring A§ was incorporated in Turkey on 4 July 1993 and started its operations in October
1993 and is conducting its operations in accordance with the Financial Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies Law Mo: 6361. The company's main operation is domestic and export factoring
transactions. The company's headquarters is located at [stanbulTurkey. The share of the Bank in the
Company is 21.75%.

Is Girisim Sermayesi Yatinm Ortaklifn AS

The principal business of i3 Girigim Sermayesi Yaunm Ortaklsfi AS 35 a private equity company, is
o make long-term investments in existing companies in Turkey or to be established in Turkey,
having 4 development potential and are in need of financing. The company’'s headquarters is bocated
at [stanbul Turkey. The share of the Bank of the Company is 16.6 7%,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards (“1FRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASBE™).
The Bank mamtains its books of accounts and prepares its stamwtory financial statements in
accordance with the Banking Law and the “Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and
Sateguarding of Documents™ published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006,
which refers to Turkish Accounting $tandards and Turkish Financial Reporting $tandards issued by
Fublic Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority “POAASA™ and additional
explanations and notes related to them and other decrees. notes and explanations related 1o
accounting and financial reporting principles published by the Banking Repulation and Supervision
Agency ("BRSA”) and other relevant rules promulgated by the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital
Markets Board and Tax Repulations. The subsidiaries maintain their books of accounts based an
statutory rules and regulations applicable in their jurisdictions. The sccompanying financial
statements are derived from statutory financial statements with adjustments and reclassifications for
the purpose of presentation in accordance with IFRS. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements were authorized for issue by the Bank management on 27 Apnl 2018,

Dasis of Measorement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as adjusted for
the elTects of inflation that lasted witil 31 December 2005, except for the following:

derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value
available-for-sale financial assets are measured o fir value

investment property and property and equipment are measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in Note 3.8, 3.15, 3.16.

- * B %
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1. BASISOF PREPARATION {continued)

11

13

14

Basis of Measurement (continued)

International Accounting Standard ("IAS™) 29, which deals with the effects of inflation in the
financial statements, requires that financial statements prepared in the cumency of a
byperinflationary economy to be stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the reporting date
and the corresponding Mgures for previous periods be restated in the same terms. One characteristic

that necessitates the application of IAS 29 is a cumulative three year inflation rate approaching or
exceeding 10074,

The cumulative three-year inflation rate in Turkey has been 35.61% at 31 December 20035, based on
the Turkish pation-wide wholesale price indices announced by Turkish Statistical Institute. This,
together with the sustained positive trend in the quantitative factors sich as financial and econemical
stabilization, decrease in the interest rates and the appreciation of TL against the US Dollars
{"USD7), have been taken into consideration to categorize Turkey as 3 non-hyperinflationary
cconomy under IAS 29 effective from | January 2006, Therefore, IAS 29 has not been applied to the
financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2006 and thereafier.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in TL, which is the Bank's Runcticnal
currency. Except as otherwise indicated, financial information presented in TL has been rounded o
the nearcst thoatsand,

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management
to ke judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estinates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical accounting judgments made in applying the Bank's accounting policies inglude:

Finameiol auvet angd Bability closificarion

The Bank’s accounting policies provide scope for assets and liahilities to be designated on inception
into ditferent accounting catepories in certain circumstances:

* In classifying financial assets or liabilities as “trading™, the Bank has determined that it meets the
description of rading assets and liabilities set out in accounting policy,

* In designating financial assets or liabilities at fair value throwgh profit or loss, the Bank has
determined that it has met one of the criteria for this designation set out in accounting policy,

16
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BASIS OOF PREFARATION (Continwed)
Use of Estimates and Judgments (Continued )

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for credit losses

Assets sccounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impamment on a basis described in accounfing
policy Note 3.8,

The specific counterparty component of the tatal allowances for impaicment applies to claims
evialuated individually Ffor impairment and is based upon managemeni’s best estimate of the present
valug of the cash Mlows that are expecied (o be received, In estimating these cash flows, management
makes judgments about the counterparty’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any
underlving collateral.

Determining foir values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable
market price requires the wse of valeation techniques. For financial instruments that trade
infrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less objective, and requires varying
degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing

assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

The Group's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in Note 3.8 = measirenent,

Trecome faves

The Bank is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. Management records deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
sufTicient taxahle profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
The recoverability of the deferred tax assets is reviewed regularly.

Reserve for emplayee sevevance pavments

In accordance with the existing social legislation, the Bank is required to make lump-sum payments
to employees upon termination of their employment based on certain conditions. In caloulating the
related lisbility to be reconded inthe financial statements, the Bank uses assumptions such as discount
rate, tumover of employess and future chanpe in salarieslimits in order o make the best estimate.
These estimations disclosed in Note 3.24 are reviewed regularly.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The sccounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities.

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted o conform with changes in presentation in
the curment year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Bank
and entities controlled by the Bank (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Bank has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investes entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the consolidated financial statements of
subsidiaries o bring therr accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group, All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Maon-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from
the Growp's equity therein. NMon-controlling interests consist of the amownt of those interests at the
date of the original business combination and the non-controlling share of changes in equity since
the date of the combination, The consolidated Nnancial statements of the entities below have been
comsolidated with those of the Bank in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, The
ownership percentages stated below comprise the total of the Group's holdings used in consolidation;

The Group’s
Subsidiaries Sector Share (%)
Yaunm Finansman Menkul Degerler AS Securities brokerage 93.78
TSKB Gayrimenkul Yatinm Ortaklifn AS Real estate investment trust 12

The lnancial statements of the companies below are accounted for under the equity method:

The Group”
Associates Sector S hare (%5)
i3 Finansal Kiralama AS Leasing 2946
ls Girigim Sermayesi Yatirim Ortakligs A5 Private equity 17.06
I3 Faktoring AS Factaring 4409

The following equity investments have been aceounted at cost; they have not been consolidated their
consolidation would not have a material effect on income for the yvear or on equity.

_ The Group's
Entity Sectof Share (%
TSKB Gayrimenkul Degerleme A5 Real-Estate Appraiser 09, 0
TSKB Sirdiirtilebilirlik Damsmanlign A% Consultancy 0gp 42

18
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Consolidation {continued )
Business Combinaticons

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date - e
when control is transferred to the Growp. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally
measured at fair value, a3 are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any poodwill that arises is tested
annually for impairment, Any gain on a bargain purchase is recopnised in profit or loss immediately.
Treansaction cosis are expensed as incurred, except if they are related o the issue of debt or equity
securities,

The consideration transferred does not inclede amounts related to the serlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not remeasured and setthement is accounted
for within equity. (therwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests

Mon-controlling interests are measured at their proporticnate share of the acquires’s identifiable net
assels at the acquisition date.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

Subsidinries

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Group. The Group *controls” an investee if it is exposed
ta, or has rights to, vanable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability o affect
those returns through its power over the investee. The Group reassesses whether it has control if there
are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This incledes circumstances in which
protective rights held (e.g. those resulting from a lending relationship) become substantive and lead
1o the Group having power over an investee. The Onancial statements of subsidianies are included in
the consolidated Mnancial statements from the date on which control commences until the date when
control ceases.

Tewestrents in Assoctares {Egaite-ucconmted Investees)

An associate i an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that 15 neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is the power o participate in the
financial and operating poelicy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies,

As at the reporting date, the Group has investments in associates with a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the fnancial and operating policy decisions of the
investes, Investments in associdtes are accounted for using the eguity method {egquity-socounted
investees) and are recopnided imitially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence until the date that significant influence ceases.
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SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Consalidation (continoed)
Investments in Associaves (Eguity-accownted Investees) (comtinued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the camying
amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payvments on behalf of the nvestes.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group®s share of the net fair valee of the identifiable
assets, labilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition 15
recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is assessed for impaimment as part of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss,

Where a group entify transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated
the extent of the Group's interest in the relevant associate.

Loss af contraf

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and labilities of the
subsidiary, and any related non-controlling interests and other components of eguity. Any resuliing gain
or boss is recogmised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost,

Travsactfons eliminated on comsolfdarion

Intra-group halances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency fransaction gains or losses) arising from imtra-group ransactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency
Forefrn carrency iransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates af the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated o
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate al the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
miepsured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated wsing the exchonpe rate at the
date of the ransaction. The foreign currency gain or koss on monetary ems is the difference between
armortised cost in e Runctional cumrency at the beginning of the vear, adjusted for effective interest and

payments during the vear, and the amortised cost in foreign curmency transbued at the exchange rate at
the end of the yvear.

Foreigm currency differences arising om retranslation are recogmized in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, which are recormized
directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency (continued)
Foreign currency transactions (comtinued)

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
cconomic environment in which the entity operates (s functional currency). For the purpose of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are
expressed in Turkish Lira, which is the functional currency of the Group, and the presentation currency
for the sccompanyving consolidated Ninancial statements,

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward
contracts, swaps and options (see below for details of the Growp's accounting policies in respect of
such derivative financial instruments).

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20146, foreign currency assets and liabilities of the Group
are mainly in US Dollar and Evro. As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, exchange rates
of US Daollar and Evro are as follows:

i) ) Inle
Ferbod End Average Period End Average
I U5 Dullar 17525 38193 3. A900 474z
I Eurg 44824 4.5225 36757 36628

Interest

Interest income and expense are recognized in the profit or loss using the effective interest method except
for the interest income on overdue loans. The effective mterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or Lability
{or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the cammying amount of the financial asset or liakility. The
effective interest rate 15 established on initial recorniteon of the fmancial asset and labality and 15 not
revised subsequently. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Growp estimates future cash flows
considening all contractual terms of the financial instruments, but not furure credit losses,

The caleulation of the effective interest rate incledes all ransaction cost and fees and points paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, Transaction costs are incremental costs
that are directly attributable o the acquisition, issue or disposal of financial assets or ahilities,

Interest income and expense presented in e statement of profit or loss and ciher comprehensive income
include:

# interest on Ninsncial as:ets and labilities measured af amorised cost caleulated on an effective
interest rate basis,

+ interest on available-for-sale investiment securifies calculated on an effective interest rate hasis,
+ interest earned till the disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

» coupons earned on fixed income securities and acered discount and premivm on treasury bills and
other discounted instruments
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SIGNIFTICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fees and eommissiong

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the etfective interest rate on a financial
asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate,

(rther fees and commission income, including account servicing fees, investment management fees,
sales commission, placement fees and syndication fees, are recognized as the related services are
performed. When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, the related
loan commitment fees are recopnized on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Oiher fees and commission expense relate mainly o transaction and service fees, which are expensed
s the services are received.

Net irading income

MNet trading income includes gains and losses arising from disposals of linancial assets at Fair valee
through profit or loss, the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, cams and losses on
derivative financial instruments held for trading purpose and foreign exchange differences,

Nividends
[ividend income is recognized when the right to receive the income is established,

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recopnized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax pavable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjusiment to tax pavable in
respect of previous vears. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the
declaration of dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the camrying amounts of asscts
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:

» temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liahilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

+ temporary differences related o investments in subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

¢ taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused 1ax losses. unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no lenger probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.

| 2]
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax i3 measured af the tax rates that are expected to be applied W temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the camryving amount of its asseils and
liahilities.

Turkish tax legislation does not permit 8 parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated

tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Tax exposures

In determining the emount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of
uncertain tax position and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. This assessment relics
on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about future events. Mew
information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the
adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the
period that such a determination is made,

Financial as=ets and fMinancial liabilitles
Recognivion and inftial measurement

The Group initially recognizes loans and advances, funds borrowed, debt securities isswed and
subordinated lishilities on the date at which they are originated. Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recopnised on the trade date at which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. All other financial assets and liabilities {including assets and liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss) are initially recognized on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured imitially at far value plus, for an item not at far
value through profit or loss, transaction cosis that are directly attributable o 15 acguisition or issue.

Classificarion
inpcial
At inception, a financial asset is classified in one of the following categories:

loans and receivables:

available for sale; or

at Fair value throwgh profit or loss and within the category as held for trading; or
held to matunty.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets amd fAnancial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities

The CGiroup classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commiments,
as measurcd at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss,

Derecopnition

The Group derecognizes a financial assef when the contractual rights to the cash Mows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the confraciual cash Mows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial azset are transferred or
in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset wansferred) and the sum of (i) consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recopnised in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained
by the Group 15 recognized as a separate asset or Lhability.

The Group enters into ransactions whereby it transfers assets recopnized on its statement of financial
position, bui retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or
a portion of them. IF all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the tansfermed assets
are not derecognized, Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards
include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred
assets, the transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to repurchase
transactions as the Group retains all or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of such
pssels.

In transsctions in which the Group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Group continues to recognize
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed
o changes in the value of the transferred asset.

The Group derecopnizes a fnancial liability when its contractual oblizations are discharpged or
cancelled or expire.

(N Fserting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the sepamate statement of
lnancial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends
gither to setile them on a net basis or to realise the asset and setfle the Lability simulianeously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by the sccounting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading
activity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets and loancial liabilities (continued)
Amertised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a linancial asset or lability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability
i3 measured ar initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount
recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fuir vilue mrefinretieint

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or. in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has access atthat date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument wsing the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if wansactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis,

If there is no quoted price in an active market. then the Group uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines
that the Fair value at initial recognition differs from the wansaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based
on a valuation technigue that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrement
is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair valee at initial
recognition and the ransaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on
an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valeation is wholly
supporied by observable market data or the transaction 15 closed out.

Idenrificarion and measurement of inmpairment

At each reporting dafe the Group assesses whether there 15 objective evidence that financial assets
not carried ar fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
as5ets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the
initial reeognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of
the assct(s) that can be estimated reliably,

Chhjective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficutty of
the barrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by
the Growep on ferms that the Growp would not viherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issucr
will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observahle data
relating to a growp of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in
the group, of economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.



TURKIYE SINAL KALKINMA BANKASI AS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENMBER 2017

3
13

3.9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets amd financial Habilities (continned)
Ldentification and measurement of Impairment {continwed)

In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its Fair value
below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held to maturity investment
securities measured at amortised costs at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually
significant loans and advances and investment securities measured at amortised cost are assessed for
specific impairment. All individually significant loans and advances and held to maturity investment
securities measured at amortised cost found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and
held to maturity investment securities measured at amortised cost that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and investment
securities measured at amortised cost with similar risk characteristics,

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical modelling. Default rates, loss rates
and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes o
ensure that they remain appropriate,

Impairment losses on assels carmed at amortized cost are measured as the difference between the
carrying amouit of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances. When a subsequent event causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognized by ransferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.

lhe cumulative loss that is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss is the
difference hbetween the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recogmized in profit or loss. Changes in
impairment provisions attributable to time value are refllected as a component of interest income,

The Group writes off loans and advances when they are determined to be uncollectible (Note 109,
Reversals of impairment bosses on debt instrurments are reversed through profit or loss; ifthe increase
in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event nccurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, Any subsequent reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Cazh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and
highly liguid financial assets with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
manaeement of its short-term commitments,

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Trading asscis and liabilities

Trading assets and labilities are those assets and liabilities that the Group acquires or incurs
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio
that i3 managed together for short-term profit or position taking, These include investments and
derivative contracts that are not designated as effective hedging instruments. These derivative
transactions are considered as efTfective economic hedges under the Bank s risk management policies;
however since they do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific provisions of [AS 39, they
are treated as derivatives held for trading. Derivative financial instruments are initially recopnized in
the statement of financial position at cost and subsequently are measured at their fair value.

Trading assets and liabilitics are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss, All changes in fair
value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss, The Group did not reclassily any
trading assets and liabilities subsequent to their initial recognition.

Derivatives held for risk management purposes and hedge accounting

Dierivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are
not classified as trading assets or Labilities, Derivatives held for sk management purposes are
measured at fair value in the statement of financial position.

The Group designates certain derivatives held for risk management as well a3 certain non-derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments in qualifying hedging relationships. On initial
designatiom of the hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship berween the hedging
instruments and hedged items, including the risk management ohjective and strategy in undertaking
the hedpre, wopether with the method that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship. The Group makes an assessment, both at inception of the hedge relationship and on an
ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments are expected to be highly effective in offsetting
the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective hedped items during the period for
which the hedge is designated, and whether the actual results of each hedge are within a range of
B0-123%. The Group makes an assessment for a cash flow hedge of a forecast wansaction, of
whether the forecast transaction is highly probable 1o oceur and presents an exposure to variations
in cash flows that could ultimatety affect profit or loss.

Farir volne hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the change in fair value of
a recopnised asset or liability or a firm commitment that could affect profit or loss, changes in the
tair value of the derivative are recopnised immediately in profit or loss together with changes in the
fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk (in the same line item in the
statement of profit or loss and OCT as the hedged tem).

IF the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets
the cnteria for fair value hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked, then hedge
accounting s discontinued prospectively. However, if the derivative 5 novated o a central
counterparty by both partics as a consequence of laws or regulations without changes in its terms
except for those that are necessary for the novation, then the derivative is not considered as expired
of terminated,

Any adjustment up to the point of discontinuation to a hedged item for which the effective interest

method is used is amortised to profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the
item over its remaining life.



TURKIVE SINAI KALKINAMA BANKASI AS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Avronts gxpresoed o theasamdy of Tirkich Ling (TEE unipss prtbensize thated

L
iz

313

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments, other
than investment securities, that are not held for trading,

When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the asset to the lessee, the amangement is classified as a finance
lease and a receivable equal w the net investment in the lease is recognized and presented within
loans and advances,

Loans and advances classified as loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Subsequent o initial recognition loans and advances are measured at
amartised cost using the effective interest method.

Investment securities

Investment securitics are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of investment securities not
at fair value through profit or loss, incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently accounted

for depending on their classification as either held to maturity, fair value through profit or loss or
available-for-sale.

Held-to-merrurity financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments aré non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed materity that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to matunity, and which were
net designated as at fair value through profit or boss or as available-for-sale.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried ar amortised cost using the effective interest method. A sale
or reclassification of 8 more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments would result
in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available-for-sale, and would prevent the
Group from classifying investment securitics as held to materity for the current and the following
two financial vears. However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would
not trigger a reclassification:

+ sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the market rate of
interest would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

»  soles or reclassifications after the Group has collected substantially all of the asset’s original
principal; and
# sales or reclassifications attnbutable to non-recurring isolated events beyond the Group's
control that could not have been reasonably anticipated.
As of the reporting date, the Group has no held-to-maturity investments.
Fair velwe through profif or fuss

The Group designates some investment securities as at fair value, with fair value changes recognised
immediately in profit or loss as described in designation at fair value through profic or loss,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are those non-derivative investments that were desipnated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as another category of financial assets. Unguoted eguity
securitics whose fair value cannot reliably be measured are carried at cost. All other available-for-
sale investments are carried ar fair value,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Invesiment securities (continued)

Avatlable-for-sale financial assets

Interest income 15 recopnized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Dividend income
15 recognized in profit or loss when the Group become entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange
gains or losses on available-for-sale debt sexurity investments are recognized in profit or loss.Other
fair value changes are recognized in other comprehensive income until the investment iz sold or
impaired, whereupon the cumulative gains and losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

A non-derivative financial asset is reclassified from the available-for-sale category to the loans and
receivables category if it otherwise would meet the definition of loans and receivables and if the
Group had the intention and ability to hold that financial asset for the foreseeable future or until
maturity. The Group did not reclassify any available-for-sale asset subsequent to their initial
recognition.

Repurchase transaciions

The Group enters into purchases’sales of investments under agreements to resell'repurchase
substantially identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price. Investments
purchased subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not recognized, The amounts
paid are recognized as receivables from reverse rcpurchase agreements in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The receivables are shown as collateralized by the underlying
security. Investments sold ender repurchase agreements continue to be recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with the accounting
pelicy for either assets held for trading, held to materity or available-for-sale as appropriate. The
proceeds from the sale of the investments are reported as obligations under repurchase agreements.

[ncome and expenses arising from the repurchase and resale agreements over investments are

recognized on an accruals basis over the perind of the transaction and are included in “interest
Income” of “inerest expense”.

Property and equipment
Recognivion and measiremernt

ltems of property and equipment except land and building are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impaimment losses.

ltems of property and equipment, which have been acquired before 31 December 2003, are measured
at restated cost for the effects of inflation as at 31 December 20035, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. ltems of property and equipment acquired after 31 December
2003 are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

As of the third quarter of the 2013, the Group changed its sccounting policy and adopted revaluation
method for land and buildings under scope of 1AS 16. The useful life of real estates are mentioned
in expertise reports. In case of the cost of tangible assets are over the fair value of the assets, within
the framework of “Impairment of Assets” (IAS 36), the value of the asset is reduced to its “fair value™
and the impairment is recognised in expense accounts. The positive difference berween the net book
value of real estate property and the expertise values which are determined by the independent expert
eompanies are recopnised under shareholders” equity. Related valuation models such as cost model,
market value and discounted cash flow projections approaches are used in valuation of real estates.

24
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Froperty and equipment (continued)
Recognition and measuremient

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
tn-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working
condition and location for its intended wse. When parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property and
equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carmying amount of the item of propenty and equipment, and is
recognized in other income/other expenses in profit or loss.

Subsequent cosrs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property or equipment is recognized in the carmying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embaodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derezognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciution
Depreciation 14 recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property and equipment since this most closely reflects the expected pattern

of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets under finance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Vehicles 3 years
Furniture and Fittings % years
Computer Equiprment 4 years
Software 3 years
Leasehold and Leasehold Improvements lease term or 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

3o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to eamn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. is stated
at its fair value at the reporting date. Gains or losses ansing from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the year in which they arise. Fair value of
imvestment properties are determined by wsing market value, discounted cash flow projections
approach and cost model.

Coadwill

Croodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary or jointly conirolled entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is initially recopnized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses,

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may ke impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the camrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carmying amount of each asset in the unil. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is
nat reversed in a subsequent period.

Omn disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired before 31 December 2005 are measured at restated cost for the effects of
inflation as at 31 December 2003 less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets acquired after 31 December 2005 are measured at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the Meture economic

benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure i3 expensed as
incurred.

Amortisation is reeognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the intangible assets. The estimated useful life of intangible assets is 3 to 5 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted iF appropriote.

N
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Growp's net investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated to sccounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases. Lease receivables are classified under loans in the accompanying statement of financial
position.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the camying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Asscts held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their Ffair value at the
inception of the lease or, il lower, at the present value of the minimum lease pavments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. L.ease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
ubligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly o profit or loss, unbess they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Group's general policy
on borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straighi-line hasis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter inta an operating
lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than investment property and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. IF any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
goudwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use,
the recoverable amount is estimated each yvear at the same time. An impairment loss is recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or its Cash Generating Unit (CGLU) exceeds its estimated recoverable
armoant,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in vse and its Fair valee less
costs (o sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGLL

For the purpose of impaimment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped topether
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGLUL Subject (o an operating segment ceiling test,
for the purposes of geodwill impainnent testing, CGLs to which goodwill has been allocated are
appregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are wtilised by more than one
CGU, Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for
impairment as part of the testing of the CGU o which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU {group of
CiUs) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a
priv rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of vther assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss 15 reversed if there has been a change in the
eslimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's camrying amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, il no impairment loss had been recopnized.

Funds borrowed, debt securities issued and subordinated liahilities

Debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Group’s main sources of debt funding.
funds borrowed. debt secunities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at Fair value
minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair valwe through profit
or loss,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly asmbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
2ssels. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time o get ready for their
intended use or sale. are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investiment income carned on the temporary investment of
gpecific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the bomowing
costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or Ioss in the perind
in which they are incurred.
33
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recopnized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to sele the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and.,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Emplayee benefits
Defined henefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an emplovee
and his / her dependants will receive on retirement, usually dependent on ene or more factors such
as age, years of service and compensation.

A provision is maintained for the present value of the defined benefit obligation, in respect of service
up to the reporting date, based on the projected unit credit method, The charge in the income
statement comprises current service cost and interest on the ohligation.

“T. Sinai Kalkinma Bankas) Memur ve Milstahdemleri Yardim ve Emekli Vakfi™ and “T.Smai
Kalkinma Bankasi AS Mensuplan Munzam Sosyal Glivenlik ve Yardimlagma Vakfi” (the “Pension
Funds™) are separate legal entitics and foundations recognized by an official decree, providing all
qualificd Bank employees with pension plan benefits. The Pension Funds are defined benefit plan
under which the Bank pays fixed contributions as employver share of monthly premium contributions,
and is not obliged to pay any other additional obligation.

The liability to be recopnized in the statement of Anancial position in respect of defined benefit plan
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of assets.
The Bank does not have the legal right to access the present value of any economic benefits available
in the Form of refunds from the plan or reductions in futere contributions to the plan, and therefore,
no assets are recognized in the accompanying statement of financial position in respect of any surplus
in the fund, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using expected interest rates for Turkish Lira.

Paragraph 1 of the provisional Anticle 23 of the Banking Act (“Banking Act™) Ma: 5411 published
in the Official Gazete Nao: 25983 on | Movember 2005 requires the transfer of banking funds to the
Social Security Instintion within 3 years as of the cnactment date of the Banking Act.

Under the Banking Act, in order to account for obligations, actuarial caleulations will be made
considering the income and expenses of those funds by a commission consisting of representatives
from various institutions. Such calculated oblipation shall be settled in equal instalments in maximum
|5 vears. Nonctheless, the related Article of the Banking Law was annulled by the Constitutional
Court’s decision Mo E. 2005/39 and K. 200733 dated 23 March 2007 that were published in the
Official Gazette Moz 26479 on 31 March 2007 as of the release of the related decision. and the
execution of this article was cancelled as of its publication of the decision and the underlying
reasoning for the cancellation of the related article was published in the Official Gazette Mo: 26731
on 15 December 2007, Atter the publication of the reasoning of the cancellation decision of the
Constitutional Court, articles related with the transfer of banks pension fund participants to Social
Security Institution based on Social Security Law numbered 3754 were accepted by the Grand
MNational Assembly of Turkey on 17 April 2008 and published in the Official Gazette No: 26870 on
£ Muv 2008,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Present value for the liabilities of the ransferees as of the transfer date would be calculated by a
commission that involves representatives of Social Security Institution, Ministry of Finance, Turkish
Treasury, State Planning Organization, BRSA, SDIF, banks and banks® pension fund institutions and
technical interest rate, wsed in actuarial account, would be 9,80%. I salaries and benefits paid by the
pension fund of banks and income and expenses of the pension funds in respect of the insurance
branches, stated in the Law, exceeds the salaries and benefits paid under the regulations of Svcial
Security Institution, such differences would be considered while calculating the present value for the
liahilities of the transferees and the transfers are completed within 3 vears beginning from 1 January
2008,

According to the provisional Article 20 of 73th article of Law No, 5754 dated 17 April 2008, has
become effective on B May 2008 and was published in the Official Gazette Na: 26870, transfer of
Pension Funds to Secial Security Institution in three years has been anticipated. Related resolution
of the Council of Ministers related to four-vear extension was published in the Official Gazette No:
28277 dated § March 2012. It has been resobved that the transfer process has been extended rwo year
with Council of Ministers’ Decree, has become effective on 9 April 2011 and was published in the
Official Gazette No: 27900, The transfer had to be completed until 8 May 2013. Accordingly, it has
been resolved that, one more year extension with Council of Minister Decree No:2013/467. has
become effective on 3 May 2013 and was published in the Official Gazette No:28636 and transfer
need to be completed until 8 May 2014, However, it has been decided to extend the time related to
ransfer by the decision of the Council of Ministers published in the OfTicial Gazette No. 283987 dated
30 April 2014 for one more year due 1o not to realize the mansfer process.

In accordance with the Health and Safety Law which became effective on 4 April 2015 and published
in the Official Gazette Mo: 29335 and dated 23 April 2015 and together with some amendments and
statutory decree, Council of Ministers authorized for the determination of transfer date to the Social
Securiry institution and there is no decision taken by the Cabinet with regards to issue date of
financial statements.

Unmet social benefits and payments of the pension fund participants and other employees that receive
menthly income although they are within the scope of the related settlement deeds would be met by
pension funds and the instinutions employ these panticipants after the transfer of pension funds o the
Social Security Institution.

The present value of the lubilities, subject to the transfer to the Social Security Institution, of the
Pension Fund as of 31 December 2017 has been caleulated by an independent actuary in accordance
with the actuarial assumptions in the Law and as per actuarial report dated 16 January 2018, There
is no need for technical or actual deficit to book provision as of 31 December 2007,

In addition. the Bank's management anticipates that any liability that may come out during the
transfer period and afier, in the context expressed above, would be financed by the assets of the
Pension Fund and would not cause any extra burden on the Bank. The income tax ¢harge is composed
of the sum of current tax and deferred tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee henefits (continued )

Employment termination benefits

In accordance with the existing labour law in Turkey, the Group entities are required to make lump-
sum payments to employees who have completed one year of service and whose employment is
terminated without cause or who retire, are called up for military service or die. Such payments are
calculated on the basis of 30 davs’ pay maximum of pay ceiling announced by the Government per
vear of employment af the rate of pay applicable at the date of retirement or termination. Reserve for
employvee severance indemmnity is computed and reflected in the consolidated financial statements on

a current basiz, The management of the Group used some assumptions (detailed in Mote 231) in the
caleulation of the reserve for employes severance indemnity,

Shorrt=term benefis

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A provision is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation o pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,
Earnings per share

Earnings per share from continuing operations disclosed in the accompanying consolidated income
staternent is determined by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year attributable to the sharcholders of the Bank. In Turkey, companies can
increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“Bonus Shares™) to existing
shareholders from retained earmings, For the purpose of earmings per share computations, such Bomus
Shares issued are regarded as issued shares,

Fiduciary assets

Assets held by the Group in a fiduciary, agency or custodian capacity for its customers are not
included in the consolidated statement of financial position, since such items are not treated as assets
of the Group.

Segment reporting

An operating serment is 4 component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may cam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to ransactions
with any of the Group's other components, whose operating resubts are reviewed regularly by the
Board of Directors (being chief operating decision maker) to make decisions about resources

allocated to each sepment and assess its performance, and for which diserete financial information is
available.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
118 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standands (IFHS)

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December
20107 are consistent with those of the previous Mnancial year, except for the adoption of new and amended
IFRS and IFRIC interpretations efTective as of 1 Janeary 2007, The effects of these standards and

interpretations on the Group’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the related
paragraphs.

] The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January 2017
are as follows:

IAS T Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendments to [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows'. The amendments are intended to clanfy
IAS 7 to improve information provided to users of financial statements about an entity's financing activities.
The improvemnents to disclosures requine companies to provide information about changes in their financing
liahilities. When the Group first applies those amendments, it is not required to provide comparative
information for preceding periods. The Group disclosed additional information in Note 35 in its andual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007,

IAS 12 Income Tazes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments)

The IASH issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendments clarify how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value The amendments clarify the
requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses, to address diversity in practice.
These amendments are retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017. The
amendments are not applicable for the Group and did not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the the Group.

Annual Improvements to [FRSs - 2004-2016 Cycle

The TASDE issued Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2014--2016 Cyele, amending the following
standards:

- [FRS |2 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: This amendment clarifies that an enfity is not
required to disclose suimmarised financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures that is classified, or included in a dizposal group that is ¢lassified, as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS & Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discomtinued Operations.

The amendments did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Growp.
i} Staodards isseed but not vet effective and not early adopied

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not vet effective up to
the date of izsuance of the consclidated financial statements are as follows, The Group will make the
necessary changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the consolidated financial statements
and disclosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.
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Y. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
328 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standarnds (IFRS) (continued)

IFES 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture { Amendments)

Amendments issued to IFRS [0 and [AS 28, to address the acknowledged inconsistency between the
requirements in [FRS 10 and [AS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed
to an gssnciate or & joint venture, to clarify that an investor recognises a full gain or loss on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The gain or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained
in & former subsidiary should be recopnised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in that former
subsidiary, In December 2013, the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely
pending the outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. Early application of the
amendments is still permitted. An entity shall apply those amendments prospectively. The amendment 13
not applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

IFES 1% Revenue from Contracts with Customiers

The IASE issued IFRS 1§ Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The new five-step model in the
standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of revenue. The standard applies to
revenue from contracts with customers and provides a model for the sale of some non-financial assets that
are not an putput of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.g., the sale of property, plant and equipment or
intangibles). IFRS 15 effective date is | January 2018, with early adoption permitted. Entities will ransition
to the new standard following either a full retrospective approach or a modified retrospective approach. The
modified retrospective approach would allow the standard to be applied beginning with the current peniod.
with no restatement of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are required. The Group is in the
process of assessing the impact of the interpretation on Minancial position or performance of the Group.

Clarifications to IFRS 15 "Revenwe from Contracts with Costomers’ (Amendment)

IASB has published final clarifications to IFRS 13 in April 2016. The amendments address three of the five
topics identified (identifving performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing)
and provide some fransition relief for modified confracts and completed contracts, The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2018, Earlier application is permitted.
There will be no material impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
318 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
[FRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Group will adopt IFRS 9 on | January 20018 and will not restate the comparative information in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). IFRS 9 will replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and introduces new requirements for the classification and
messurement of financial assets and Mnancial liabilities, a new model based on expected credit losses for
recognizing loan loss provisions and provides for simplified hedge accounting by aligning hedge
accounting more closely with an entity’s risk management methodology.

Along with the on going works on expected credit losses under IFRS 9, it is assumed that provisions will
be approximately TL 140 < 150 Million in the opening balance of | January 2008.

A number of significant judgments are required in determining whether the rsk of default on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since inifial recognition, The Group considers all reasonable and
supportable information that includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group's historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward looking information,
to make a relative assessment of any deterioration of credit quality as per IFRS9.

The above assessment of Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) reflects the transitional estimate of
ECL impact arising after considering all reasenable and supportable information from prior periods up to
the reporting date.

a} Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the classification
and measurement requirements of [FRS 9. [t expects to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value.

The equity shares in non-listed companies are intended to be held for the foreseeable future. No impairment
Iosses were recognised in profit or loss during prior periods for these investments. The Group will apply
the option to present fair value changes in (0C1 and profit and loss will no longer be reclycled under IFRS
9, and, therefore, the application of IFRS 9 will not have a significant impact.

Loans and advances to customers as well as lease and other receivables as well as trade receivables are held
o collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash Mows representing solely paymentis
of principal and interest. The Group analysed the contractual cash flow characteristics of those instruments
and concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost measurement under [FRS 9. Therefore,
reclassification For these instruments is not required.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

3.18 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
b} Expected credif losses

[FRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss” model in 1AS 39 with a forward-looking ‘cxpected credit boss’ {ECL ) model.
The new impairment model will apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCT, except for
investments in equity instruments. A number of significant Judgements are also required i applying the
BCCOUNTING requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for SICR:
- Choosing appropriste models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL:

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/ market
and the associated ECL; and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.
¢) Hedge accounting:

The Group determined that all existing hedie relationships that are currently designated in effective hedging
relationships will continwe 1o qualify for hedge sccounting under [FRS 9. As IFRS 9 does not change the
general principles of how an entity accounts for effective hedges, applying the hedging requirements of IFRS
% will hot have a significant impact on Group's financial statements.

d} Disclosure

IFRS 9 also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group's disclosures about its financial ingruments particularly in the year
of the adoption of IFRS 9.

IFRS 16 Leases

The LASD has published a new standard, IFRS 16 'Leases’. The new standard brings most leases on-halance
sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases, Lessor
accounting however remains largely unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is
retained. IFRS 16 supersedes [AS 17 'Leases’ and reluted interpretations and is effective for perinds beginning
on or after January 1, 2009, with earlier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers' has also been applied. The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on
financial position or performance of the Group,

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions ( Amemidments)

The IASE issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, clarifying how to aceount for certain types of
share-based payment transactions. The amendments. provide requirements on the accounting for-

a. the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-based pavments;
b. share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and
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Y. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

3.28 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) {continued)

¢. a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

These amendments are to be applied for anaual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, Earlier application
is permitted. The amendment are not applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the fnancial
pasition or perfoemance of the Group,

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts {Amend ments)

In September 2016, the LASB issued amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, The amendments introduce
two approaches: an overlay approach and a deferral approach. These amendments are o be applied for annual
pericds beginning on or after | Janwary 2018, Earlier application is permitted. The standard is not applicable
for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group,

A5 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

The IASB issued amendiments o 1AS 40 'Investment Property *. The amendments state that a change in use
oectrs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use, These amendments are to be applicd for annual perinds beginning on or afier | January
2018. Earlier application is permirted. The amendment are not applicable for the Giroup and will not have an
impact on the financial position or performance of the Ciroup.

[FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The imterpretation clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation states that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income is the date on which an entity mitially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or recetpt of advance consideraion,
An entity is not required to apply this Interpretation o income taxes:; or inswrance contracts {including
reinsurance costracts) it issues or reinsurance contracts that it holds,

The mterpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2018, Carlier
application is permitted. The interpretation is not applicable for the Group and will ot have an impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3218 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
Annual Improvemenis to IFRSs - 2004-2016 Cycle

The IASB issued Annual Improvements o [FRS Standards 2014-20016 Cycle, amending the following
standards:

- IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: This amendment deletes the
shori-term exemptions about some IFRS 7 disclosures, [AS 19 transition provisions and IFRS 10 Investment
Entities. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.

- IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: This amendment clarifies that the election to
Mmeasure an invesiment in an associate or a joint venture held by, or indirectly through, a venture capital
organisation or other qualifying entity at fair value through profit or loss applving IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
is available for each associate or joint venture, at the mitial recognition of the assoctate or joint venture. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, Earlier application is
permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement reguirements in “1AS 12 Income
Taxes™ when there is uncertainty over income [AxX treaments,

When there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the interpretation addresses:
(a) whether an entity considers unceriain tax ireatmenis separately;
{h) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;

() how an entity defermines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and

{d} how an entity considers changes in facis and circumsiances.

An entity shall apply this Interpretation for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
Carlier application is permitted. 1 an entity applies this Interpretation for an earlier period, it shall disclose that
fact. On initial application, an entity shall apply the interpretation either retrospectively applying IAS 8. or
refrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Interpretation recognised at the date of initial
application.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the interpretation on financial position or performance
of the Grrowp.
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). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
128 Adoeption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (continued)
1FRS 1T - The new Standard for insurance contracts

The IASE issued IFRS 17, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 model combines a current balance sheet
measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over the period that services are
provided. Certain changes in the estimates of fuure cash flows and the risk adjustment are also recogmised over
the period that services are provided, Entities will have an option to present the elfect of changes in discount
rates either in profit and boss or in OCL The standard includes specific guidance on measurement and
presentation for insurence contracts with participation features. IFRS 17 will become effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or afier | January 2021; early application is permitted, The amendments are not
applicahle for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to [AS 18 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures ( Amendments)

In Octoher 2017, the 1ASH tssued amendments to LAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joimt Ventures. The
amendments clarify that a company applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an associate
or joint venmure that form part of the net investment i the associate or joint venture.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments excludes interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for in accordance
with 1AS 28 Investments in Associztes and Joint Ventures. In this amendment the LASR clarified that the
exclusion in IFRS 9 applies only (o interests a company accounts for using the equity method. A company
applies [FRS 9 to other interests in associates and joint ventures, including long-term interests to which the
equity method is not applied and that, in substance, form part of the net investment in those associates and joint
ventures.

The amendments are effective for annueal periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application
permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group,

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)

In October 2001 7. the LASD isseed minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to enable companies to
mensure some prepayable financial assets at amortised cost.

Applying IFRS 9, a company would measure a financial asset with so-called negative eompensation at fair
value through profit of loss. Applying the amendments, if a specific condition s met. entities will be able to
measure al amortised cost some prepayable financial assets with so-called negative compensation.

The amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early application
permitted.

Tlve Groap is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or performance of
the Group.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
3.28 Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) {continued)
Annual Improvements - 2015-2017 Cycle

In December 2017, the LASH announced Annual Improvements o IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle,
containing the following amendments to IFRSs:

' IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Jaint Arrangements — The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify
that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests
in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity ohtains joint control of a business that
i% & joint operation, the entity does not remeaswre previously held interests in that business.

S IAS 12 Income Taxes — The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (Le.
distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or koss, regardless of how the tix arises.

. IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity horrews generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

The amendment are not applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement [ Amendments 1o [AS 19)

On 7 February 2018, the IASD published Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement”™ to harmonise accounting practices and to provide more relevant information for decision-making,
The amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or setthement
occurs. An entity shall apply these amendmenzs for annual reporting perinds beginning on or after 1 January
2019, Earlier application is permitted. If an entity applies these amendments for an earlier period, it shall
disclose that fact. The Groap is in the process of assessing the impact of the interpretation on francial position
or performance of the Group.

329  Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.Events afier the
reporting period thar are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instriments;
=  credit risk,

»  liguidity risk,

+ market risk,

= operational sk,

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the risks below, the Group's
ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of
capital.

Risk momagemernt fromewvork

The Board of Directors of the Bank has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Group's risk management framewaork. The Board of Directors monitors the effectiveness of the
risk management system through the Audit Committee. Consequently, the Risk Management
Department of the Rank, which carries out the risk management activities and works independently
from executive activities, report to the Board of Directors.

The Group’s risk manragement policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Ciroup, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all
employees understand their reles and obligations.

The risks are measured using internationally accepted methodologies, in compliance with local and
international regulations, and the Bank's structure, policy and procedures. It is aimed to develop
these methodologies to enable the Bank to manage the risks effectively, At the same time, studies for
compliance with the international banking applications, such as Basel 11, are carried out.

Through its normal operations, the Growp is exposed to & number of risks, the most significant of which
are liquidity, credit, operational and market risk. The risk management group excrcises its functions
according to the International Regulations of the Risk Management Group, and directly reports to the
Board of Directors. Responsibility for the management of these risks rests with the Board of Directors,
which delegates the operational responsibility to the Bank’s general management and approprate sub-
committees.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk arises where the possibility exists of a counterparty defaulting on its obligations. The most
impartant step in managing this risk is the initial decision whether or not to extend credit, The granting
of credit is authorized at the Board level or at appropriate levels of management depending on the size
of the proposed commitment, and in accordance with hanking rezulations in Turkey. The Group places

strong emphasis on obtaining sufficient collateral from borowers including, wherever possible,
mmortEnres or security over other assets,

The credit portfiolio is monitored according to the overall composition and quality of the credit portfolio
considering factors such as loan loss reserves, existence and quality of collateral of guarantees according
1o the standards and limits set legally and intemally. The Bank has also an inemnal credit msk rating
system in mamaging the credit risk, which rakes into eceount variows financial and nonfinancial indicasors
tor the evaluation of corporate and also guarantees.

The credit monitoring department screens the creditwarthiness of loan ewstomers ance every six months
regularly, The debtors™ creditworthiness is screened tepularly in line with Communiqué on “Methods
and Principles for the Determination of Loans and Other Receivables to be Reserved for and Allocation
of Reserves”™, The credit limits have been set by the Board of Directors, the Banks credit committee and
the credit management. The Bank takes sufficient collateral for the loans and other receivables extended,
The collaterals obtained consist of personal suretyship, mortgage, cash blockage and client checks.

The limits are also identified for the ransactions made with the banks. The credit risk is managed by
considering the creditworthiness and the limits of counterparties.

There are control limits over the positions on forwards, options and similar ofher agreements. Those
limits are comtrolled by the management on a regular basis. The credit risk is managed together with the
potential risks arising from the fluctuations in the market Credit risk, market risk. liquidity risk and other
risks are managed as a whole,

If exposed to a significant degree of credit risk, the Bank reduces the total sk by using, exercising or
selling forward transactions and other similar contracts,

The compensated non-cash boans are evaluated at the same risk weight as the non-performing |oans.

Rescheduled loans are monitored within the Bank's internal rating application, as well as the monitoring
applications required by the related regulations. All precautions are taken in order to classify the
companies’ risks and their current rating may change within this internal rating applications,

The Bank manitors and investigates the maturity concentration and the risks which are different than
their normal pattern.

The international operations are made with many comespondent banks in various countries. The
counterparty limits are set with operations made with the hanks.

The Bank being an active participant in international hanking market is not exposed to a significant
degree of credit risk when evaluated with the financial operations of other financial instittions.

iy
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l

4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Crealit eivk {oomitnned)

The credit portfolio s alse monitored sccording to various crtena including industry sector,
geographical area and risk categories. Credit risk by types of bormowers is as follows:

Loans and Advances

Loans amd Advances

i Cusiomers Marketable Securities (o Daaks and Ofthers
Cutrrent Prior Current Prisr Currenl rior
Perimd Feriod Perind Perind Perind Perind
0ans according to
bormwers
Private Sector 20,924,931 16479601 196,185 184,133 - -
Public Sector 872664 125,018 4.363608 4182747 - -
Banks 507233 738,503 - 42,844 4493 G900 T52.883
Share Certificates - - 77,931 32972 - -
Total 11 IR 17343,122 4637 TR4 JA62T01 493690 TS2ER)
Loans according
i peorraphical
conceniration
Diimestic 22197732 172700980 46099563 4444110 489 554 601,476
Eurcpean Union - 212% 2T.B21 18582 BET 8,486
OECD Countries [*) - - - - 1109 1,41
UUSA, Canada e : - - 2,140 1,948
Other Countries 107,006 70,007 - - - 49,932
Total 1D 3828 1T 343,122 4637784 4,462,701 493,690 TE1ERY

) EECE cowmiries excel EL cowairies, {54 and Canala

The gengraphical concentration of assets, liabilities and other credit related commatments are a3 follows:

Total Other Credit

Total Liahilities Helated
31 December 20017 Assets %% And Equity % Commitments %%
Turkey 29,267,293 98 1,079,502 37 4% 139 R55 100
Curo Zons 386,087 | 10629810 36 - -
Oifshore - - I9.615 1 - -
LSA, Canada 19086 - 6,374.317 21 - -
OECD Countries (*) 14371 - 263 489 | - -
Other Countries 107,813 | 1,252,917 . - -

19,794,650 29,794,650 49,139,855

1®1 CHECT papmries exoe L cormaes, U84 pad Canpea
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dmoinls expresieed i Peocromas of Terkish Lirg (TR unfesy oifsereise simieg,
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

4.

L ik firRi

Total (her Credit

Liabilitics Related
31 December 2016 Total Assets %% And Fquity % Commitments %
Turkey 24.249.7T00 97 B.OILTE] 3o 44437712 100
Euro Zone 457705 2 E.668 894 33 - -
Offshore = - 2 - - -
USA, Canada 33826 - 6,015,191 24 - -
OECT Countries (*) 2338 - 117,578 - - -
Other Countries 119935 1 1.130,088 5 - -

24,862,504 24,863,504 44437, 712

(" OECD coumtries exoepd EL comarries, £33 aud Camada

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of

financial position;

Gross maximum exposure

Cash and cash equivalents, balances and reserve deposit at the

Central bank and other banks
Interbank money market placements
Funds lent under repurchase agreements
Trading financial asset

Derivatives held for trading
Derivatives held for hedging purposes
Loans and advances (o custommers
Held to maturity investment securities
Avalable-for-sale myestment securties
Guarantees and collaterals

Total

44

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
1,340,822 1,276,025

< 254,003

1 e

0,303 [ 3,0H01
26,788 3174038

. 272
22,304,828 17,343,122
1,532,047 1,375,729
1,096,432 3073971
2,573,711 1,669,208
IR DG 25 350,298
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Am s expreseed i thouseardy of Tiekich Ling (TLY afers atherwie stoted
4. FINANCTAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

F ik i

Credit quality per class of loans and advances as at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Past due not Specific Fortfolio
impaired reserve for  reserve for
NMeither past and  impairment impairment
due nor individuaally losses on losses on
impaired im praireid lnans leans Total
Loans and advances
o banks 493,687 - - - 493 687
Loans and advances
to customers 21,535,738 Bi8.304 {52,731) (6483 22304828
Corporate lending 17.140,122 £78.992 (14.676) (75.761) 17928677
Small business lending 4,189,397 35259 (34415 (14,2781  4.27596]
(ther 16219 4,053 (1,640 (444} [ 040, T RE
Total 22029 425 918304 (51.731) (96,483 22798515
Credit quality per class of loans and advances as at 3] December 2016 is as follows:
Past due not Specific Portfolio
impaired  reserve for  reserve for
and  impairment {mpairment
Neither past due individually losses an losses on
_____nor impaired i i panbred lommns loans Taotal
Loans and advances
i banks 497 040 - - - 497,949
L.oans and advances
0 customers 17,319,339 71,89 (10.485) (37.628) 17.343.122
Corporate lending [4.210.576 33.000 {6.540) (30819 14206307
Small business lending 3039297 33,630 (L.I82) (B.632)  3.067.04
Other 69466 _3,176 [2.763) LR 69,722
Total 17,817,288 71.5% {10, 485) (A7.618) 17.841,071
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Armeamnrs pxpveseed in thoprgngly of Tarkish Lieg (TT prlese pifervine slated,

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Carrying amount per class of financial assets whose terms have been renegotiated:
3 December 31 December

T r{ 1]

Loans and advances to customers
Corporate lending 70,860 63,324
Small business lending 120,978 129670
Total 191,818 [RIERCLE

Credit risk is evaluated according to the Bank’s internal rating, Non-financial service customers
included in eredit portfolio are rated with respect to the Bank's intemal rating and ratings of the
financial service customers, which are rated by external rating firms, are matched to the Bank’s
internal ratings. The loans rated according to the possibility of being in default are classified from
the highest grade (top grade) to the lowest (below average grade) as below: at the bottom of the tahle
there are credits in default (impaired) sccording to rating model.

A1 December 31 December

2017 16
Basic Loan Quality Catepories
Top Grade ET2.974 oL 176
High Grade 1.941.211 1,826,700
Average Grade 20,098,076 15,520,292
Below Average Grade 722,407 538,242
Impaired 54,741 52,784
Total 13,689 409 18,529,194

Category “top™ shows that the debtor has a very strong financial structure, “high” shows that the
debtor has a strong finaneial structure, “average™ shows the debtor's financial structure is good

enough while “below average™ category shows that debtor’s financial structure is under risk in the
short and medium term.

As at the reporting date, the total of the Group’s cash and non-cash loans and fnancial lease
receivables {gross amount including the non-performing loans, excluding the specific and portfolio
provisions) is TL 25,027,926 and TL 1,338,517 of these customers have not been rated (31 December
2016: TL 19,060,443 and TL 531.249).
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Armerirs greessed i threrety of Teekisk Cira (TL wrlers obberwise stoted,
4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity rixk
Ligquidity risk is a substantial risk in Turkish markets, which exhibit significant volatility. The Group is
exposed to a certain degree of mismatch between the maturities of its assets and liabilities.

In order to manage this risk, the Growp measures and manages its cash flow commitments on a daily
basis, and maintains liguid assets which it judges sufficient to meet its commitments,

The Group uses various methods, including predictions of daily cash positions, to monitor and manage
its liquidity risk to avoid undue compentration of funding requirements at any point in time of from any
particular source,

The liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration
to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specifically to the Bank. For the purposes
of monitoring and assessing the liquidity position of the Bank’s assets and liabilities, the liquidity
rate is weekly calculated. The ratio during the year was as follows:

3 December 31 December

iy le
*% _ "
Average during the perind 208.07 202,72

The table below presents the last three months® consolidated liquidity ratios in accordance with the
BRSA repulations:

Perbod TL+FC FC

31 October 2007 [23.54% 133.52%
10 Movember 2007 [ 56,1 8% 13599
31 December 2017 178 65% 204.55%
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dmonmty expressed (4 thewsarngdy of Turkioh Lirg (T inless ptherwise stated
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Liguidity risk {eontinued)
Asat 31 December 2017 the estimated maturity analysis for certain assets and liabilities is as follows:
Lpta 3o 12 Over o

3 Monihy Months | Year  Maturity Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents g = 4 24
Balances with central bamk - - 15,433 15433
Heserve deposits at cenral bank 420,133 - - 410,543 §31.678
Loans and advances to banks 474,194 - - 15489 405 68T
Imerbank money market placements - - - - -
Funds lent under securities repurchase
agresments k] - - - 3
Trading financial assets L.L120 4,233 2912 1020 2,305
Drerivative Mrmancial nstruments 51,024 46,610 2329154 - 326,788
Dermvative assets held for hedging purposes - - - - -
Loans and advances te customers 22HLAE AT46,682 14387 810 - 22304828
Aviilable-for-sabe investment securities BT338 405362 2.5255m TE, 140 305454353
Held-to-maturity investment sscurities - - 1,532 047 - 1532047
Tatal I 50X ERT (0,577,555 215640 IRB10225
LIABILITIES
Obligations under repurchase agreements 576,643 34122 . - 610,775
Derivative liabilities 67,778 45.8%9 17,736 - 132,403
Derivative liabilities held for hedging purposes - = TA.6E2 TEGED
Fumnds barsovwed GOLD34 J02T.7I8 1537005 P00 627
Dbt securities issued (1) - - 4 R0 465 - 489X d4as5
Payables to money market 01147 - . - 700147
Current account of loan customers [2.50] - 3501
Taxes and dues pavahle 9986 - pR
Corporate tax liabiliny 43662 - 43662
Employee benefits [2.73% - . 12,151 24886
Total 2027796 ZINR,T4Y 20450818 L1800  25.604.534

(1 fuetudes Tier 2 sutarofimcted brmds witich avg elimsifeo on fre Batmes shepr o smbordinoied doa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

i Pl ot rwise rraned
4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liguidity risk feontinged)

As at 31 Decemnber 2016 the estimated maturity analysis for certain assets and liabilities is as follows:

Upia Jioll ver Ma

3 Monihs Months 1 Year M atmrity Tzl
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 29 s
Balances with central bank - - - 153,271 162271
Reserve deposis at central bank 413,451 - - 199,315 612376
Loans and advances to banks 477,002 - - 20,847 497 045
Interbank money marker placements 254,033 - . . 254033
Funds lent under securities repurchose
agreements 01 - - - S0l
Trading financial essets - 4.557 4,551 335 13001
Dierivarive financial instruments 66627 103,576 203833 - iT4.036
Derivative asse1s held for hedging purposes - - 72 - 27
Loans and advances to customers L4908 31250758 12593472 - 17345022
Available-for-sale mvestment securities 519873 253,631 2248245 §2.22r 3073971
Held-tp-monerity investment securties - - 137870 = L5T4,728
Tuotal JIITETY  FeI09IY 16426311 441,077 13711,
LIABILITIES
{¥bligations under repurchase agreements 203,354 - - - 295,354
[erivative liabilities 640,328 101,857 158412 - 320,797
Derivative labilities held for hedging paposes - - 51,433 - 51,433
Fumnds borrowed 494,259 2170800 13462427 - e I2T.4%
Dbt securiies sswed . = 3486,T3X . 3,486,712
Payahles to maney marked a0, 280 - - - T BED
Curremt account of ko customers 53T - - . 317
Taxes and dues payable 6,713 - - - 6,713
Corporate 1ax liability £ D6 - - - £ 066
Emgployes benefits Q50 - - 12,313 21813
Taotal 1,837417 LITRA6T 17,159,204 13513 112816401
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {(continued)
Liquedcliey pisk foostinned)
Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities;
o Uptal .Y 32 18 Over 5
As at 31 December 2087 Month  Months Maonths Nears venrs  Adjustments Tuotal
Liabilities
Payables to stock
exchange money market 01958 - - - = (E11} TOL, 147
Funds borrowed ZIE 189 34059 3267276 B IZSEI E343921  (1.73T.200) 19001627
Obligations wnder
repurchase agreements 5770003 EE] 34,143 - - (459 610,775
Debd securities igaued (1) - 42,919 2IET03  44D4E66 1514306 (13053303 4892 465
Tatal 1497150 427066 3537122 12930247 9.82R.2I3  (1.043,790) 28106014
£ fectuades Thee 2 qubordimited bons which are clersyfed on the Balmce sheer as subordimoed foaas.
Uptol 1-3 312 I-5 Over 5
Asat 31 December 2006 Month  Monihs Months YCArs veard  Adjustmenis Taotal
Liabilities
Fayables 1o stock
exchange money market Q55 s 5020 - - - = oE0. B0
Funds borrowed 247,783 295038 2302132 T2I0253 TARLIID (1432310 16,127,496
Obligations under
repurchase agreements 295,399 73 - - 2 (120} 05354
[ebt seurities issued - = 17300 150,100 23T 364 (640012 3486,732
Total LA 306,033 2,480,432 S.810353 9861475 (2081975 10,870,462
Analysis of contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank's derivative financial instruments:
Uptol 1-3 312 -5 Ower s
As al 31 December 2007 Month Monihs  NMonths YEAFS years  Adjustments Tokal
Giross seftbed:
Swap agreements L9I6,591 1013302 1,768,510 16989336 91883531 (69 498) 30,803,772
Forward confracis 434377 245444 1737978 92318 - - 4. B26 105
Ciptiens 91076 209093 2051703 - - 44651972
Otheer T1.830 - - - - - T2R30
Tuial IEI4.874 5676010 5555189 [7.188.65%4 9.1KR531 (A0, 498] 40354679
- Uptol 1-3 312 -5 Overs
As at 31 December 20006 Momth ~ Months  Months FERES years  Adjustments Total
Ciross setthed:
Swap agreements 2.500.26% 981,056  E916TO (3477200 BZTSEVN (B2,811) 25995234
Forward contracts 212286 5M4.T9B 3123%7 61 G4 - = LI3L115
(Iptions $17407 1653321 4629408 [20,500 - - 6911934
Cither 117,544 - s - - ) = 117544
Tatal LISTE06 R A6D 055 5 RIS 465 13660645 8.22% 801 (M2 RN 34175829
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in the level of interest rates, foreign exchange rates or the price
of financial assets and liabilities and other financial contracts will have an adverse financial impas
The primary risks within the Group's activities are interest rate and exchange rate risk. Turkish
interest rates can be volatile, and a substantial part of the Group's statement of financial position is

denominated in currencies other than the Turkish Lira (principally the US Dollar and Eurp-zone
Ccurrencies).

The Group's management of its exposure to market risk is performed through the Asset and Liability
Committee, comprising members of senior management, and through limits on the pusitions which
can he taken by the Group’s treasury and financial assets trading divisions,

The Group benefits from VAR methods, stress testing and scenario analysis for measuring market
risk. VAR calculations are made by choosing the 90, 935 and 99% confidence intervals, | day/ 10 days
holding periods.

dnterest Rare Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk either through market value Nuctuations of statement of
financial position items, ie. price risk, or the impact of rate changes on interest sensitive assets and
liabilities. In Turkey, interest rates are highly volatile and this may result in significant changes in prices
of financial instruments including government bonds and treasury bills, The major sources of funding
are borrowings. Interest rate sensitivity of the assets, liabilities and off-halance sheet items are managed
by the Group. Progressive forecasting is determined with simulation reports, interest rate fluctuation
effects are identified with sensitivity reports and scenario analyses.
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i A th i urkizh Lirg urd;

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk {continwed]
Interest Rate Risk (oomtinned!

The below table summarizes the Group™s exposune to imterest rate risks as at 31 December 2017

Man

Upted Qia 12 {ver 1 laterest

Alimtha Alonths Year Bearing Tatnl
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalens - - - 24 24
Balames with the central bank - - - [3.433 B5433
Reserve deposits at central hank 420,135 - - 411,543 B315678
Loans amd advances o banks 474198 - - 15,489 495 647
Imteshiank money market placements - - - - =
Funds lent under securities resale agreements 3 - - = 3
Trading assets 1.120 4,233 2432 1,020 9.304
[rerivative asseis 221,862 T 523 25,403 326,788
[rerieative assets used for hedging purposss - - - . .
Loans and advances W cuslomers 10101230 EO076.128 4127470 = 22 MMEZE
A |whle-lor-sade mvestment securiibes 244,176 10470461 |.72T,055 TE, 140 3,0u05.432
Feld-te-maturity investments secusilics 024,897 405,324 197,324 - 1232447
Total 12387621 9.606,76% 6,080,186 E15.04%  TRAINIIS
LIABILITIES
Oibligations under repurchase sgreements 5766353 Ml - = GINOTTS
Derivdive habililies 15184 66,1 LG 12,433 - 2324008
Derivative liabiliies used for hedging purposes T3 23N 39,341 - TREE2
Funds borrewed {429,043 4065817 4 506,767 - 19000627
[refut securities issued (1) - = BU0 4GS - 4892 4455
Paoyatbes i stock exchange money market TH147 - - - T 047
Current pecesnd of loan customers 12801 5 - - 12,9
Taxes andd dues payable i E: % 0 oRG 0 9%
Corporate fax liahility - - - 41,642 43663
Employee benefis - - - 24, BRG 248846
Toeal 11 EEILMIZ 419366 94510006 TREM 25608534
Total Balance Sheet Pesition 507013 SAIRA0 (3370340 44118 380691
Todal OFF Balunce Sheet Position (1ATL942) (3750000} 8290174 - 67,331
T ozl Fositiom (965920 1 66T SN2 1,520 354 447015 S8, 022

£ fstacker Tier 2 subardimmted’ bomdr which are clarsified on e balee sfeed o subontimesd o,
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Amonmty prorecned o thowsandy of Taekish iy ©TT ueless orbserwise sopeed

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk {continwed)

fnterest Bore Risk (contiried)

The below table summarizes the Group's exposure 1o interest mte risks as at 31 December 201 6:

 Noa
lpta 3 Jta 12 Over 1 Isterest
Mamihs  Nonths Year _Bearing Tuotal

ASSETS
Cash and cosh equivalems - - - 20 29
Balance with the Central Bank - - = 165371 163,271
Reserve deposits o cemtral bank 413451 - . Fo< 525 Gl1LTTA
Loans and advancss io banks 477,102 - - 20,847 497,549
Interbank meney market placements 234033 = - - 254,033
Fuends lert under securities resale agreements 901 - - - W11
Trading awets - 4057 4.661 33: 13,001
Derivative assets 146,492 130,464 G080 374,038
Dierivative assets used for hedging punposes ] - - - 272
Loans and advances 0 CLEstMmMETs 7630687 6540801 3, 163634 = 17343122
Avwilable-far-sale investment securities B21L136 Ba4.1%4 1,855 450 52271 1071571
Held-m-maturity investments ssourities B26.30% 362504 185710 - 1,375,729
Toial 10.37K.469 T.HE197]  S.004.573 441077 25711,MH
LIABILITIES
Obligntions under repurchass agreements 295,354 - - - 203,354
Derivative |iabililes 124939 127,153 68,705 - 320,797
Dierivative liahilities used for hedging purposss 1845 47238 - - 51,433
Funds barrawed 915319 3350968 3617200 - 18127494
Dbt securites lawed - - 3486732 - 3.4%6.732
Payables to stock exchange mamey masket 9, BRO - - - Qi 380
Current account of loan customers 5117 - - - 3.317
Taxes and dues payable - - - 6,713 6,713
Corpombe tax liahilicy - - - 5 [l 5,466
Emploryes hensfiss - - - 21,811 21,313
Total 1549 654 3515709 'I,ITZ_J:IE J3.501 212816401
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L3 wrkish Lim ) i i
4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk {eomtinued)

fiterert Hare | TRAGTA if)
As at 31 December 2017, a summary of average interest rates for different assets and liabilities are
as follows:
TL Euro US Dullar
e T :"&.
Assets
Cash & Balances with Central Bank 148 - 143
Banks 1547 1.00 -
Interbank money market placements - - -
Funds lent under repurchase agreements 1101 - -
Loans and advances to customers 14.90 4.0 0,16
Available-for-sale investment securities 11.71 5.6l 455
Held-to-maturity investment securitics 11.69 - 5,59
Liahilities
COhbligations under repurchase agreements 12.05 0.28 0.50
Funds borrowed T.74 1.01 237
Pavables to stock exchange money market 11.58 - -
Marketable securities issued - - 571
Current account of loan customers B.00 025 0,50
As at 31 December 2016, a summary of average interest rates for difTerent assets and liabilities are
as follows:
TL Evuro US Dollar
o - U Ve
Assely
Cash & Balances with Central Bank 34 - (.50
Banks 11.39 223 1.85
Interbank money market placements 1056 - -
Funds lent under repurchase agreements 5 .(HD - -
Loans and advances o customers 13.29 136 547
Available-for-sale investment securitics 0 G35 559 4.77
Held-to-maturity investment securities 10.35 - 3.59
Liahilitivs
Ohbligations under repurchase agreements T.R6 027 (.50
Fumnds borroweed 4 091 2.08
Payables to stock exchange money market 8.50 - -
Marketable securities isswed - - £ 1%
Current account of loan customers LRI 025 .50

=8
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Murket risk fcomtinued)

frterest Rate Sensitiviry feonginmef)

The exonomic valuation differences of the Bank arising from flucteations on interest rates, in
different currencies that is caleulated in accordance with the communiqué are presented in the table

below,
Carrent Period i RevemaeSharehoblers®
Applied Eh‘.—k Revenue! Loz Equity - Loss |
{+i= x basis point)
Currency = g Sharehldirs” Equity
TL + 3] ¢ 816} B paant {19447/ B3,505 11.91%) 1 1.74%
Eurp A 20 /{20801 basis point 36363 [18.688) 1.18% {1, 39550
LIS Doltar + M0 /{2060 buisiis poant {TOL30A) 79,127 i1 46%0 0 1.650
Tuotal {far Mepative Shachks) 145,044 30w
Total (for Positive Shocks) (IN368T) [3.20%)
, Applied Shock RevemswSharcholders®
Frior Periud (+- 1 basis peint) Revenue! Lass Equity — Lo/
Curreney Sharehmdders” Equity

TL #5000/ (400) basis poiet [155,520)/ 147,503 {3.03%) 4. 76%
Ewera + 200/ {200) basis poist LAY (LS, 160 1.05% /{1, 48%)
LIS Dusllar +J0HD / (200) basia point {57,300 " 55,837 11850 180
Total {for Megative Shocks) 184,151 607%
Tatal (for Positive Shocks) {180, 318) [S81%)
(Mher Price Risks
Equity price sensifivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to stock price risks at the
reporting date.

The Group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments of firms traded in Istanbul
Stock Exchange. Since these investments are classified as financial assets held for trading, only the
net profitloss will be affected.

As at the reporting date, equity price sensitivity of the Group has been analyzed. The analysis has
been based on the asswmption that the inputs (eguity prices) to the valuation model are 20%
higherlower while all other variables are constant,

The Group classifies its equity investments both as held for trading and available for sale investments,
Therefore, the et profit/loss is not affected as long as the Group does not sell its equity investments
classified as available for sale investments.

Unless the equity share investments classified as assets available for sale are disposed of or impaired,
the net profit’loss will not be affected.
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk feontited)
Currsney risk {continued)

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies and throwgh its
investment in foreign operations.

Mancegement of curvency risk

Risk policy of the Group is based on keeping the transactions within defined limits and keeping the
currency position well-balanced. The Group has established a Foreign currency risk management policy
that enables the Group to take a position between lower and upper limits which are determined, taking

total equity of the Group into account.
The below table summarizes the foreign currency position of the Group as at 31 December 2017
Oiler
Forekgn
_E!ﬂz 1'S Tindlar Curremcies Taotal
Axzeis
Cash and cash equivalems inchuding Centrz] Bank 4,754 &8 . 4862
Reserve deposits at Central Bank 14w 351 441 497 T80 £31.678
Loans and advances o banks 14.819 12131 1,75% 28,79
Derivative Ananclal insimaments 150 30,713 1,165 .06
Bdomey marks placemenis : - - -
Laans and advances to custiomers 4, 199, 43 1951, 604 - 200151003
Availubde-Fr-ssle mnvestmenl secuarilics 55313 ag3y X7 - 1038, 542
el d-o-maturity investmens - 197,126 - 197,126
Dirivarive asse1a held for hedping purposss - - - -
{liher nsseis 10,242 19, 842 - 210084
Total Assels T059, Mk 12,754,590 TLaY IXIHS10
Liabilities
{kligntiens under repurchase agreements Q.4 25 62712 - Ial.13%
Derivative [Enascial Liabilitics hedd fof rading (LR 1724 283 a3l
Fumils barrowed O350 (MR o 2Z1.510 7 IR, TRILALS
Markerable securities isswed (1) . 4,892 265 . 4.3 465
Cumrent accourd of kann customers 5922 5801 - 11728
Drerivative lighilities held fior hedging pusposes - THAEZ - Th6d2
by lizhilities |8.8%2 40,794 1573 6234
Total Liabilities A, 70l I3 1688 1RGE 14007 519
Met Statement of Financlal Position (43000 1.538,29%) THORS (1. A497,20%
(T Balamee Sheet Podsion
Lierivaives to sell L4 4,529,407 487344 B 10T 16T
Derivatives bo buy [1.284,5%4) {01662 (550 454] 14 454,953y

19420 1508, 745 {7210 124318

mm——

Met Position (2564207 (19585 4T {254,994

(1) tectodes Tier 2 mbovclimted Boms whivh are cliailad om sl bnlovce Sarer o rabordigmed fsire,
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk [(confin

Cu isk {contim

The below table summarizes the foreign cumrency position of the Group as at 31 December 2016:

Axmety
Cash and cash eguivalents including Cenral Bank
Reserve deposits at Central Bank
[.o@ns and advances to banks
[erivalive Anancial insgrumenis
Moty marke placements
Loans and advances to customess
Availshbe-for-smbe invesiment securitiss
Flehd-to-malurity investments
Drerivatlve Asscis beld for hedging purposes
Criher asseis

Tzl Assets

Liabilities
Ohligadions under repurchase pprecmenis
Dizrivative financial linbilities held for trading
Funés bmovwed
blarkesnble secuarities issued
Carrent accment of loan cusinmers
Dierivative linhilities held for hedging permpeoses
(ker Liakdlilses

Tatal Lisbilidies

Met Statement of Financlal Positbon
T Balange Sheet Posifion

[Terivatives o sell
[Ferivalives ta buy

Met Poxifiom

Cither
Foreigm

Enrg 'S Dkallar  Currencies Taotnl
1432 63 = 3,595
24112 252112 117,44 612 T
377590 43,250 1,300 421841
31190 26613 EAILY] 62,3506
190,138 - - .
6,541,782 9,451 T - 142 482
42371 FITA31 - 020, 104

- 186,739 - 186,739

= 272 - 7T

15206 dal 217 - 276,403
TAZE D50 1,238.541 122185 18819, 46
31,352 2 A6 - B,
27,231 16.27H - 43510
T297.962 B6R12E2 = 15,980,244
- 3486712 = 3.486,732

2652 L1H - 3806

- 51233 - 31,4353

4, 1{4 78,712 2.5 B1LEIT

T Al 483 1143057 .80 19,709, 341
U5.46T {100,506} 119354 (HER.ETS)
1418329 3400553 134472 244,738
i1, 704,679 {2.439,243) {257,1HkY) i4.397.01 51
(1%, A50) 1,052,712 [1IRA21) 647741
[ 19 88.5) (21,8404} T3 (241,950

6l
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (econtinued)

AP HY vy

Mo long or short position is taken due to the uncertainties and changes in the markets therefore; no
exposure to foreign currency risk is expected. However, possible foreign currency risks are calculated
on & weekly and monthly basis under the standard method in the foreign curmency risk table and their
results are reported to the official authonties and the Group®s top management.

Thus, foreipn currency risk is closely monitored. Foreign currency nisk, as a part of general market
risk, is also taken into consideration in the calculation of Capital Adeguacy Standard Ragio.

Mo short position is taken regarding foreign currency risk, whereas, counter position is taken for any
foreign currency risks arsing from customer transactions as o avoid foreign currency risk.

The Group s mostly exposed (o Euroe and US Dollar currencies,

The following table degails the Group’s sensifivity to 10% increasedecrease in the TL against US
Dwollar, Eure amd other curtencies.

% lncrease  Effecton profitorloss(l)  Effectonequity(2)

31 December 3 December 31 December 31 December

2017 2018 2017 2016

US Diollar 10%a (2,555) {1.955) 00 {3.185)
Eura 1045 {23, 804) (19425} 1] i
Crther 0% of 73 - )

s Decrense _Effect om profit orloss(1y  Effect on egueity (I)

3 December 31 Decemsber 31 December 30 December

) 27 2016 7 2016

U5 Drlbar 10% 2553 1955 (a0} 31838
Eura 10%% 23,808 19.425 {14y (137
Oeheer L {98) {73} - -

a1 Valurs exprorred are before e fox el el
) Effect o pqpurty e medl bogtide s pa peafip loas

The Group’s sensitivity to foreign currency has increased during the current period mainly due to the
change in currency position,
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Cupital management — regulatory eapital

BRSA, the regulatory hody of the banking industry, sets and monitors capital requirements for the
Bank. In implementing current capital requirements, BRSA requires the banks to maintain a
prescribed ratio of a minimum of 8% of total capital w total risk-weighted assets. BRSA regulation
requires the caleulation of the capital adequacy ratio based on the consalidated financial statements
of the Bank and its financial subsidiaries.

The Bank and its financial subsidiaries" consolidated regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

»  Tier | capital, is compused of share capital, legal, statutory, other profit and extraordinary reserves,
retained eamings, translation reserve and non-controlling interests after deduction of goodwill,
prepaid expenses and other certain costs,

»  Tier 2 capital, is composed of the total amount of general provisions for loans, restricted funds, fair
value reserves of available-for-sale financial assets and equity investments, subordinated loans
received and free reserves set aside for contingencies.

« Tier | capital, is composed of share capital, legal. statutory, other profit and extraordinary
reserves, other comprehensive income, retained earmings, translation reserve and non-
contrelling interests after deduction of goodwill, kaschold improvements on operational leases
and other certain costs.

»  Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifying subordinated liabilities and general provisions.

The BRSA also requires the banks to maintain prescribed ratios of minimum 6% and 4.5% of Tierl
and Tier 2 capital, respectively, to total value at credit, market and operational risks starting from |
January 2016.

Risk-weighted assets are determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the
varying levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. Operational risk capital
requirements and market risk capital requirements as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are calculated
using the Basic Indicator Approach and included in the capital adequacy calculations.

The Bank’s palicy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business,

The Bank and its individually regulated cperations have complied with externally impoesed capital
requirements throughouwt the year and the previous vear,

il
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Capital management — regufatory capitaf {continued)

The Bank's and its financial subsidiaries” regulatory capital position on a consolidated basis at 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2016 was as follows:

mipT NG

Tier | capital 3682068 3.114,133
Tier 2 capaal 1,261,281 [77.167
Dieductions from capital (5.223) (132600
Total regulatory eapital 4,939 626 2. 2TR.040
Credit risk (excluding coumterparty credit risk) 26,511,342 19,834,989
Counterparty credit risk &03,591 95,368
Market risk 433,000 BB 475
Oiperatiomal risk 1,252.570 1,113,544
Capital ratios

Total regulatory capital expressed as a percemage of wtal credit

rizk, counterparty credit risk, market risk and operational risk 17.03%% [4.56%

Tetal Tier | capital expressed as a percentage of fotal credig

risk, counterparty credi risk, market risk and operational risk 12.70% 13.84%

Ag at 31 December 2007, the Bank's capital adequacy ratio on an unconsolidated basis is 17.05%
{31 December 2016: 14.33%). The Group’s consolidated capital adeguacy ratio as at 31 December
2007 is 17.03% (31 December 200 6: 14.56%),

Operaitonal Fisk

Operational risk amount of the Group is measured with Basic Indicator Method referring to
“Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks™ According to this
method; the caleulation is performed parallel to the practice within the country, by multiplying 15%
of the Group’s last three years™ average gross revenue with 12.5. The amount, calculated as TL
1,252.570 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: TL 1.113,544) represents the operational
risk.

Yearly gross income, as presented on the income statement; is calculated with net interest income
plus net fee and commission, dividend income except from subsidiaries and associates, trading
profit/loss and other operational income minus profitloss gain on sale of assets other than of rading

accounts, extraordinary income, operational expense for support service from a bank and recoveries
from insurance.

Fuir values of financial instrumenss

The Group measures fair values using the Following fair value hicrarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

* Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
INstrments,

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable either directly
{i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices). This catepory includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in
which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly ohservable from market data.

hd
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values of financial instraments {continued)

= Level 3: inputs that are enobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have
a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjusiments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences berween the instruments.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted shares which are measured at
their historical costs as fair values could not be determined reliably.
Based on the fair value hicrarchy, the CGroup®s financial assets and liabilities are categorized as follow:

31 December M7 Tonal Level | Level 2 Level 3

Firnmecisl Assets

Trading assety 305 ¥ | .18 -
Crenvernmer fowcds and Tregeary Jilly . . -
Equity afuires i ] . -
Del securilies Drued by corpararumg 2284 pIM -

Derivative pssets 3I6.7RE - J16.7THE .

Dierivatives ssed for hedging purposes - - - =

Available for cale investment securities {*] LRI 1800453 21,300 154714
Crenvermmmeral fonads armd Treaswry fills B2 oal 1821 667 = -
FEurahamdy FOMP, RS 1easy - -
Equity shares &8, 178 TSR XA & 197
Ly sevwrities ixaed by corponmiions PEG AT 18151 - 148500

Financisl [ixhilidies

Dertvative lksbilities 152403 - 13403 -

Derivatives used fur hedging parposes THEET - TH6RL =

s af B Devemter 200 7, securities thar are mar publicly traded aud ohe dyapestinadion of Gir valwes could not be ehemined
refiahiy amosaring ra 7L 990 bave been smecrured m cost,

31 December 2016 Toeal Level | Lewvel I Level 3
Fimamckal Asaets
Trsding nxsets [EXI]I] | 1301 % N
Cioverament hoeds o Tremeury bills w7 547
Equity shurres LT G
Lie b securilic Dmued by compararias 4 607 - -
Derivative Resets 374036 - S0 -
Taerovatives used for hedging purposes iT2 - in -
Available for sale investment secarities {*) 30680315 1.HIE 681 11424501 15921
Cravernmerd ooy amd Treasiey Bills 1 E25078 I 813 NCR - -
Eurabareds W7 85F - LU e AR .
Lireity shaares 4 25 fe), T2 15,5452 fa. 2
Dher securarien Gratied By corpormiong 2300817 74521 - [53.904
Finane kal Liabilidies
Derivative lisbilities 320,797 - 320,797 -
Derivatives used for bedglag puarpeses 51433 - 51413 =

™ As of 31 Decewber 2016, seceritaes dhar e not peblicly iranfed and e delerminarion of fair valses could mo by obnrned
redimiy amowmliee fo TL 5988 have deen measewasd ar engs

The reconciliation from the heginning balances to ending balances for fair valee measerements in
Level 3 for the year ended 31 December 2017,

= S

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Balance # the beginning of the vear o920 16,421
Purchases - =
Redemption orsales L0724y -
Clnsing haklamce b, 097 16,5921

635
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6.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

T.

J1 Decem ber M December

n17 il

Cash on hand — Turkish Lira (*TL") 24 20
Tuotal cash on hand 14 10

Thers is no blockage on the use of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 20017 (31 December

2016: None),
31 December 31 December
7 P
Cash on hand 24 pi')
Loans and advances to banks (with original maturity of less
than 3 months) 493,687 497949
Linrestricted balances with the central bank 15433 163,271
Funds lent under repurchase agreements 3 B01
Interhank money market placements - 254,033
Total cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of Mnancial position 509,147 918,183
Accrals on cash and cash equivalents (4899 15,2421
Total cash and cash equivalenis in the consolidated
statement of cash Mows 504,248 9121941
BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK
a) Unrestricted balances with central bank
o 31 December 31 December
17 2016
Demand depesits - TL 10,571 161,276
Demand depasits — FC 4 862 19095
Total 15433 165,271
b) Reserve Deposits at central bank
31 December J1 Devem ber
2017 2016
Foreign currency rescrves BILATR 612776
Total RILATR 612,776

As per the Communigué numbered 2005/1 “Reserve Deposits™ of Central Bank of Republic of
Turkey (CBRT), banks keep reserve deposits at the CBRT for their TL and TC liabilities mentioned
in the communigqué. Reserves are calculated and set aside every two weeks on Fridays for 14-days
periods, In accordance with the related communiqué, no interest is paid for reserve requirements,
The CBRT has started to pay interest to the Required Reserves held in Turkish Lim according (o

regulation released at 5 November 2014,

i}
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7. BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK (continued)

b) Heserve Deposits at central bank (continued)

[n accordance with the regulation issued at 27 January 2015, CBRT has begun 1o collect monthly
commissions over daily balances of Two Days Motice Deposit Accounts and Required Reserves
held in the foreign currencies, to be valid from | February 2015, The CBRT Required reserves of
2 May 2015 has staried to pay interest o the Required reserves, reserve options and unrestricted
account held in 15 dollars according to repulation released at 3 May 20135,

As per the “Communigué on Amendments 1o be Made on Communiqué on Required Reserves™ of
Central Bank of Turkey, numbered 2001/11 and 2011/13, required reserves for Turkish Lira and
Foreign currency liabilities are sei at Central Bank of Turkey based on rates mentioned below.
Reserve rates prevailing at 31 December 2017 are presented in table below:

Reserve Rates for TL Liahilities

Original maturity Reguired Reserve rate (0]
Other liabilities until 1 vear maturity (1 year included) 10.5

Onther liabilities until 3 vear maturity (3 year included) 7

(rther liabilities more than 3 year manerity 4

Heserve Hates Tor Foreign Currency Liabilities
Required Heserve Required Reserve

rate {%&) rate (%2}
LT the furecd IT the Tund
barrowed before borrowed alter
Oripinal maturity 28 August 2015 I8 August 2015
Oither liahilities until 1 year maturity (1 year included) 19 24
Other liabilities until 1-2 year maturity {2 year included) 13 19
Oither liabilities until 2-3 year maturity (3 year included) 7 14
Other liabilities until 3-3 vear maturity (3 year included) [ [
Oither liabilities more than § year manerity 5 4

69
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8.  LOANSAND ADVANCES TO BANKS

31 December 31 December
2017 1016

Domestic Banks
Demand deposits — TL 2,601 #a3
Time deposits -~ TL 462,377 39,235
Demand depesits — FC 12,753 8681
Time deposits — FC 11,820 367,762
479,551 436,541

Foreirn Ban

Time deposits ~TL - 15,010
Demand depesits - FC 4.136 11480
Time deposits — FC - 34918
4,136 61,408
Total  4036ET 197,949

The time deposits above mature within 4 - 60 days and eam interest al rates ranging [2.60 -15.90% for
TL balances, 0.45 — 1.00 % for foreign currency balances as at the reporting date (31 December 2016
Maturity: 1 - 37 days; interest rate 11-13.75% for TL balances and 0.05-2,65% for foreign currency).

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 31 December
) 2017 2016
Trading assets
Government bonds and treasury bills in TL 2 5047
Diebt securities issued by corporations 8.285 4,650
Equity shares 21 R0
Mutual funds Qopy _ 1424
Total 9303 13,001

There are no government bonds and treasury bills include securities given as collateral or blocked as

at the reporting date {31 December 2016: TL 1,289).

0



TURKIVE SINAI KALKINMA BANKASI AS AND ITS SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED M DECEMBER 2017
Amprmiy prprerred fn thousands of Turkish Lieg (T yafess atherwise staned

10.  LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 31 December

27 pL L

Short-term and current portion of lang term loans 1,500,224 707,707
Long-term loans 20,891,243 16,631,913
Total performing loans I2 400,467 17,339,620
MNon-performing loans 53,575 ) 51,615
Total leans 22 454042 17,391,235
Less: Specific provision for impairment losses on loans (52,731) (10.485)
Less: Caollective provision for impairment losses on loans (6. 481) __(17.628)
Total lmans 12 M4.828 17.343,122

Movements in the reserve for impairment losses on boans for the year ended 2017 and 20146 are as

follows:
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 31 Decem ber
017 016
Specific provision for cash loans:
Asat | January 10,485 8,729
Charge fior the vear 41636 3R15
Reserve released and write offs _[39m) (2.050%
As at 31 Decembhber SL73 10,485
Collective provision for cash loans:
As at | January 37618 13,697
Charge for the vear 68 855 3,931
Provision released and write ofls (10,0007 -
As at 3| December u6,483 IT.62R
Total reserve for impairment losses on loans 149,214 48,113
Loans can be further analysed by customer groups as follows:
31 December 31 December
T 2016
Sector
Corporate customers 180019114 [4.243 666
Smuall business 4,324 656 3.074,927
Oither 110,272 T A2
12 A54,041 17,391,235
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10, LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued )

31 December 31 Decem ber

- 017 2016
Lurrency
LIS Dol lar 10,256,453 8.920,778
Euro 8149422 5.807.172
Turkish Lira 2,300,967 1,347,391
Foreign currency indexed TL loans 1,746,160 [.315 894
Tutal 22454041 17391235

Foreign currency indexed loans represent loans extended in Turkish Lira but the related principal and
interest are repaid in Turkish Lira equivalent of the cumency to which they are indexed.

Pertorming loans, receivables and non-performing loans can be analysed by sector as follows:

Segtor 31 December 2017 3 December 2016
Man- Mom-
Loans performing ___Loans performing
Energy L024.403 33.741 THT A 33,710
Finance 2901311 - 2374392 -
Consimection 1107287 8.722 74,300 & 150
hetal 1048327 - 1075800 =
Cement B8 440 i0 570,343 0
Tourism 914,303 - 641,405 -
Health Services 39439 - 485,574 -
Chemical 759475 = 56,539 -
Textila S19.937 1625 224 00 1.624
Food and Beverages 266913 - 121,726 -
Plastics 247 503 - 228916 -
Motor Wehicles 202,506 - | Blh427 -
Education 120045 - 38,356 -
Pulp and Paper 108,549 - 32,126 -
Ceramics 49,104 - 67,551 -
Farming 45850 - 10,451 a4y
Lumber and Wood 19197 - IT.9H -
Muchinery Production 216X 248 26,3182 an
Rubber and Tires 18,438 - (9,207 .
Citeer 1184631 ‘]‘,lgd-ﬂ__ 5 2655014 3369
Total 12400, 467 51575 17339620 El618

TL 334,401 ol the cash loans are due to related parties, Related parties have TL 260 non-cash loan
risk as at the reporting date (31 December 2016: TL 405,438 and TL 7.878; respectively).
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10, LAANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

[nteresi rates ranees for short term loans are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2017 6k

1.03-3.90r% 0.45-3.00%

Euro
L5 Dollar 4.00-7.00%% 1.54-4.90%
TL QR-17.75% 11.20=14.00%

Interest rates ranges for long term loans are as follows:

3 December 31 December

: 2017 2016
Euro 0.98-698%  0.85-7.29%
US Dollar 1059.08%  2.05-8.5T%
L 5.07-194™%  5.18-16.55%

The cellaterals for the loans due to the related parties are TL 62,548 as at the reporting date (31
December 2016: TL 68.835).

73



TURKIYE SINAl KALKINMA BANKAS] AS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Amoumiy sxed 1w thrisa ri IFa f HpFn

10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
Set out below 15 an analysis of loans as at 31 December 20107 by custnmer groaps and impairment:

Small Portfolio
Corporate  Buosiness {Jther Heserve Total

Meither past due nor impaired 17,140,122 89,397 136,210 - 21.535.738
Past due not impaired 264,729 - - . Bod, 729
Individually impaired 14,263 35,259 4,053 . 53,575
Total pross 180019014 4324656 110,272 - 22454042
Less: reserve for individually

impaired loans (14.676) [(34,415) (3,640 - (52,731)
Less: reserve for collectively

impaired loans _ r - . {96,481} (96,4830
Total reserve for

impairment {14,676) (34.415) (36400 (96483 (149214
Total, met 15004438 4,290,241 106,632 (%6483 22304818

The syndicated koans pranted to a company amounting o L'SD 78.661.835 are classified under Past
Due not Impaired coloumn as of 31 December 2017, Discussions between creditor banks and related
sovereign institutions about restructuring of loan of this company are in process.

Sef out below i3 an analysis of boans as at 31 December 2016 by customer groups and impairment:

Small Portfolin
Corporate  Husiness Dither Reserve Total

Neither past due nor impaired 14,210,576 3,039,297 6%, 466 - 17,319,139
Past chee not impaired 20,281 . . - 20.281
Individually impaired 12,809 35.630 1176 £ 51615
Total gross 14,243,066 3074927 TA642 - 17391,235
Less: reserve for individually

impaired loans {6,540 (1.182) {2.763) - [ 1inABS)
Less: reserve for collectively

impaired loans - - - - {37628)  (3T6IR)
Total reserve for

im pairment {65400} (1,182) (2,763) (37T.628) (45.113)
Taotal, net 14237,126  3073,74% 69879 (37,628) 17,343,122
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10, LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

A reconciliation of the specific reserve for impairment losses by customer groups is as follows:

Small
Corporate Business ~ Dither Total
At | January 2017 6,540 1,182 2,763 10,485
Charge for the year k214 331250 1,172 42,636
Recoveries, releases and write
affs (78 {17). {295) {390)
At 11 December 2017 14,676 MA15 3640 £21.7M
Small
Corporate Business ther Taotal
At 1 January 2016 5257 1173 199 8,719
Charge for the yvear | 955 1 1.550 1.k15
Recoveries, releases and write
offs . (T2 {1.092) {205} (2,059
At M Decemiber 2016 5400 1,182 1,763 1485

The Fair value of collaterals that the Bank held for tofal of non-performing loans and advances io customers
23 a1 31 December 2017 is TL 48.202 (31 December 2016: TL 47.165).

Asat 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans
per customer groups is as follows:

More
m7 Less than M-ai il -5 than
30 days days days 91 days Total
Loans and advances to customers
Corporate lending 568,338 - 296,391 - BeLT29
Taotal L M - 196391 - 864,719
More
26 Less than J1-60 6190 Ihan
30 davs davs days 91 days Toial
Lpans and advances to customers
Corporate lending _ 2 - - - 20,281
Total 0. 2R1 - - - 0281

Of the total aggregate amount of gross past duwe but not yet impaired loans and advances to cusiomers, the
Fair value of collaterals, capped with the respective outstanding loan balances including those not past due,
that Bank has TL 820,521 of loans as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: TL 19,122),

Loans and advances to customers not impaired amounting to TL 13,512,101 have floating interest rates
{31 December 2006; TL 11.687,620) and the remaining TL % 888 366 have fixed interest eates (31
December 2006; TL 5,648,425).
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11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Available-For-sale investmen] secupiiies
31 December M December
miT 2016
Crovernment bonds and treasury Bills in TL 1,821,667 1.§23.078
Eurcbonds [ a7 RS5
Dbt securities issued by corporations 186,670 230,817
Equity shares 78,140 52,221
Tuotal 306,432 3073971

The abuve povernment bonds and treasury bills include these pledged under securities repurchase
agreements with customers amounting to TL 171,230 as ar the reporting date (31 December 2016: TL
212.355).

The blocked securities kept in the Central Bank, the Istanbul Stock Exchange and Takasbank ISE
Sertlemnent and Custody Bank Ine_ {Clearing House) for the purposes of Bguidity requirement and trading
guarantee an interbank, bond, repurchase and reverse repurchase markets as at 31 December 2007 and
31 December 2006 are as follows:

T 207 26 2016

Nominal Carrying Nominal Carrying

overnment Ronds and Treasory Bills Value Value Value Vulue
Ceniral Bank- Open Market Operations 426,913 413,308 478,144 472,282
Clearing House — Blocked Securities JI8.602 3210 748 Qo g9 a7 Rabh

Other (International Bank) Foreign Currency _ Ba520R 616,146 2B.RI14 682641
1LAZ083Y 1389202 1306849 1,251,789

Th
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11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (continued)

The Groap's equity shares in available-for-sale investment securities are as follows:

(rwnership 31 December  Ownership 31 December

% 2017 % 2016

Iavest

Istanbal Takas ve Saklama AS 1.62 17.518 1.62 10,724
I3 Yaunm Ortakhif AS 6.95 10680 £.95 0,782
Curopean [nvestment Fund-EIF 17 15,713 018 [2B18
Turkish Growth and Innovation Fund-TGIF 1o 12,108 i 5.764
I3 Portfoy Yonetimi AS 9.9 6.197 9.9 6,197
Ege Tanim Cronleri Lisansh Depoculuk AS [0.03 1,056 005 1,555
Cam Elvafl Sanayi AS - - - -
TSKB Gayrimenkul Degerleme AS (*) Q999 1M 4o.q4q 3T
Borsa Istanbul A 5. il 3661 0.1 m
T5KB Sirdoriilebiliclik Danigmanhigs A% (*) Qo g 1.230 oo |9 {230
{Mhers =1.00 7208 = 1.1 2.400
Total equity shares im available for sale

invesiments TR A0 51,111

{*F The b TR Grnsimeibal Dvferleme AY and TEER Sordarelebilinlk Dawgnumdl AF fove mot been convolidied

sine their efect on oomnalibmed imeose ped wet rrsets B ool sigmiffooal

[Tehd to maturity inyestment securities

31 December 3 December

017 206

Governmient bonds and treasury hills in TL 1,532 047 1.375.729

Total 1532047 1375719

The maverment of the held-to-maturity securttics as follows:

B 31 December 31 December
- T 2016
Balance at 1 January 1,375,729 #7602
Additions (*) - 417,241
Redemptions (836) (1.597)
Impairment provision (1.903) -
Exchange differences 13914 31,581
Interest meome accreals 145,143 55,002
Total 1,532,047 1.375,729

1"} The CT'l indeved government bands wich the nominal value of TL 339321 are reclassified to held io maturiny Invesineents m
prive perivd. The remaining reclzssification effect under equity is amounting so TL 9,784 s of Decendrer 11, 2007,

11
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12. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2006, the following entities are accounted for under the
equity method in the accompany ing consolidated Mnancial statements;

(rwnership M December
(%4) Mominal p{1] il
nvesiee
l3 Finansal Kiralama AS 28.50 185,726 247,371
ts Faktoring AS 21.75 13.811 83,226
I3 Cririgim Serm. Yat, Ort. AS L6.67 12,442 43,828
211,979 374,425
(hwiership 31 December
e (%) Nominal 2016
Investee
Is Finansal Kiralama AS 28.56 171,446 212,466
I5 Faktoring AS 21.75 13,811 36,801
I3 Girigim Serm. Yat. Ort. AS 16.63 12,442 43,655
197699 311922

The Group's share of profit in its equity-accounted investees for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
TL 43,861 (31 Decenber 20016: TL 38.805). In 2017 the Group has received dividends of TL 14,732
frowm its mvestments in equity-accounted investees (3] December 2016: TL 20,623 ).

The Group's equity-accounted investees are listed on BIST, except for Is Faktoring AS. Based on their
closing prices of TL 1.48 of |5 Finansal Kiralama AS and TL 1.74 of I Girisim Serm. Yat. Ort. AS,
the fair value of the Group's investment in listed entities is TL 293,558 (31 December 2016: TL 1.11
of {3 Finansal Kiralama AS and TL 1.50 of I Girigim Serm. Yat. On. AS, the fair value of the
Group’s investment is TL 200,471

Summary financial information for equity-accounted investees is as follows:

Current Fair

I December 20T Total pssets Equity Perlod Frofi Value
I3 Finanzal Kiralarma AS 5068687 10681 74,200 271,944
{5 Faktoring AS 4,267,774 138,753 49530 .
I5 Girigim Serm. Yat, On. A% 250379 ESE.'JE.‘!:__ Q46 21612
9508 E40 1.21R5. 357 124,676 198,558

Current Fair

31 December 2016 Tiotal pssets Equliy Periiml Profil Value
Is Finansal Kiralama A5 4,508,334 TEE 147 g1.800 (90,820
t5 Faktoring AS 1025426 128821 32939 -
I3 Girlgim Serm. Yur, Ort. AS 258805 236,161 |.0AD 13,651
1,792 565 1,040,129 118799 il L 1L e |

T8
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13, GOODWILL
Eu!-]
Balance at | January 2016 383
Balaiice at 31 December 2016 183
Balenee at 31 December 2007 1K

irmmend

At | January 2016 -
At 31 December 2006 o -
At 31 December 2007 = =
Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 January 2016 383
Balanee at 31 December 2016 383
Balance at 31 December 2007 353

The above goodwill is attributable to Yatinm Finansman Menkul Degerler A5,

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable amounts of the investees are determined from cash
[ows projections. The Bank’s management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the investees, The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts,

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount of the investee is higher than the amount of
goodwill; therefore, no impaiment on goodwill is realized,

™
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 Decem ber 31 December

017 2014
Fair value of investment properties 243,145 231,55
45 131,323

The Group's investment properties are held under freehold interests.

In the current period, the Group has 3 investment properties with a total net book value of TL
243,145 (31 December 2016: TL 231.323) belonging to the Bank’s subsidiary operating in the real-
estate investment trust sector.

The total external rent income earmed by the Group from its investment properties 15 TL 9,464 in
the current peried {31 December 2006; TL 7,731}

The movement of investment properties as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as

follows:
Closing
Clesing Balance
Balance of
Current Perlod of Prior Change in Current
i Period  Additions Disposals  Fair Yalue Perbod
Tahir Han 23,020 - - 2405 23 4258
Fendorya Mall 143,650 «7 - 2353 [32,990
Adana Hotel Project _ 64,613 10 - 107 64,730
Total 131,523 8T - 10865 243,145
Closing Closing
Balance of Balance of
: i Prior Change in Current
Erior Period Period  Additions Disposals  Fair Value  Perlod
Tahir Han 19,903 - - 1,105 23,020
Pendorya Mall 156,975 L%l {14) [13.462) 143,690
Adana Hotel Project 04,413 1.007 - {07 64613
Total 241,293 1198 LEL] (11, 154) 131,323
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY {(continued)

Fair value measurenent

The Group's investment properties are valued annually by an independent real estate appraisal
company, The fair valee of investment properties are within the scope of Level 3 acconding 1o

valuation technigues. Reconciliation of Level 3 is given at the following table:

I January — L January -
31 December 20017 31 December 20016
Balance | Januarry 208,303 221,388
Addition 93T [, 198
Disposal - (143
Recognied in other income from other
operationg
Change in fair value - -
Recognized in other expense from other
nperationg
Change in fair value B.460 {14,269
_Transber : :
Total 7.7 208303

Tahir Han has considered as Level 2 as of December 31, 201 7.
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible fixed assets include software that are amortised principally on straight line basis

which amortise the assets over their expected wseful lives.

31 veember 3 December
T 2016
A uisition cost
Balance at | January 5232 154
Additions [.305 1.698
[Misposals o i
Balance at 31 Idecem her 6537 211
A ilated amoriisation
Balance at | January (3139 (2.483)
Charge for the vear (B18) (655}
Disposals 3 E
Balance at 31 December (3,957) {3.138)
Net Book Value, as at 31 December X580 2094
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17. OTHER ASSETS

3 December 31 Decemiber

207 2006
Cash guarantees given 180100 258.810
Prepaid expenses 54,007 49,310
VAT carried forward 7,393 9.591
Deposits, guarantees and colleterals given T.134 kL
Prepaid taxes 4 485 3000
Trade receivables 3100 4,482
Receivables from brokerage customers 322 1,178
Cither (*) _47.031 35,170
Total J04 564 361,680

1) Poitive maeker valuarion diffiverces for hecled iewes amounted TL 29 955 & fwcilmivd (December 31, 2006; TT 22 536,

18. OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The securities sold under repurchase agreements and corresponding obligations are as follows:

Fiil i) i1} i)
Carrying Carrving
Yalue of Value of mi7
Underlying Corresponding Repurchase
Securities Liability Value
Availakle for sale investment securities 171,250 119,164 119191
Held to maturity investnrent securities __ 332,078 491611 492,303
713,318 610,775 611,494
1016 2016
Carrying Carrying
Value of Value of 2016
Underlying Corresponding  Reparchase
Secorilies Liahility Yalue
Available for sale investment securities 212,835 172,327 172,394
Held to maturity investment securities 129,784 123.027 123 0RO
342439 195,354 295,474

The repurchase agreements have maturity periods between 4-172 days (31 December 2016: 391
days). The Group has applied interest rates of 0.25%-0,5% for foreign currency, 7.00%12.31% for
Turkish Lira agreements (31 December 2006: 0.25%-0.5% for foreign currency, 6.00%-8.04% for
Turkish Lira). Included in the carrying value of the ohligations under repurchase agreements, the

interest accrued amounts o TL 381 (31 December 2006: TL 92).
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1%. FUNDS BORROWED

31 December M December

2017 i

Short-term funds 164,852 120,921
Short-term portion of mediwm and long-term funds 3,360,542 2510,103
Medium and long-term funds 15476233 13,496,472
Total 19001627 16,127,496
- 31 December 31 December

017 6

Foreign currencies 18,780,615 15,980,244
Turkish Lira 220012 147,252
Tuotal 19,001,627 16,127 4%

The Group did not have any default of principal, interest on redemption amounts or other breaches of

loan covenants as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 200 6: None).
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19. FUNDS BORROWED {continued)

As at 31 December 2017, interest rates and maturities of bank borrowings are as follows:

31 December 2017

Fore P r i
International Bank for Recomstruction and
Development (IBR Y

~EFIL 1

-EFIL 11T

-EFIL IV

-|BRD SME

-IBRD-Renewable Enerzy Loan

-|BRD EFIL IV Limit [ncrease

-IBRI) [inesvative Access to Finance

European Investment Bank {E1R)

Kreditanstalt Filr Wiedermuibau { KFW)
Council of European Development Bank (CER)
Association of French Development (AFD)
Domestic bank bomowings

Syndicated Loan

European Bank for Recomstruction and
Development EBRD

Intesa

Istam Development Bank (1DB)

International Finance Corporation

Credit Suisse

Banco [3e Sabadell

JP Morpan Securities

Oesterreichische Entwicklungshank AG (OER)
Cititank

JBIC-Japan Bank for Intemational Cooperation
[Mxha Bank

Ing Bank

Standard Chartered Bank

Total foreign eurrency borrowings

Turkish Lirs Borrowinzs
Credit Suisse

Domestic bank borrowings
Total Turkish Lira borrowings

Tuotal

g6

Amoant

IH6,Th
392 592
1645
[57. 706
Tiinass
T, Tk
BAT. 745

ETTET

4665 088
220770k
TI1,849
HT,050
139,286
1,170,096

183 [ 5]
CER ]
1.212503
54684
£l Ik E
141555
0233
THhA30
113927
217h2E
48352
157641
17859

_ 18,780,615

[ 59 RED
6112

FTITE

19001627

Maturity

Min

(5912020
L5270 1720210
[ 3072036
15032021
[303°201%
37122038
15032042

1376, 20015
AT 120G
162008
Hwi2008
02 0ER
1072008

10032022
IR0 E
190272023
[%7122018
230320273
T2
I5DG2020
3122020
2302008
2T 20T
203 200 H
JAECIGER
1R

[ootr2o0m
LZol2o07

belax

157032044

317052028
EILE i FE e
2122024
320G
LU Fl B
16 TR

122
2T 8
240375030
15121022
23032023
O3012029
O30RA020
[5122026
20NN
2rna2ney
26052008
FIORZ00R
12T 2000

232y
ORAT2020

Min

(|
1.1
1.5
L.51
3%
3%
.53

il
0.18
0.0%
0.5
1.50
.15

2.9%
1.40
v
4.6l
200
.37
290
260
it |
.00
1.4
1.}3
pA |

T30
Als

Iaterest Bate (%)
Mlax

[ Brd |
L7l
1.51
1.51
242
142
.11

iw
515
25
1.13
1.30
|

440
LAD
19
326
209
137
2.5
2.6
ime
333
1.40
1.33
291

wys
B3
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19. FUNDS BORROWED (continued)
As at 31 December 2016, interest rates and maturities of bank borrowings are as follows:

M December 20146 Amount Maturity Imterest Rate (%)
Blin blax Min Max

Foreign Currency Rorrowings
Intermational Bank for Reconstrection and

Development (IBRD)
-EFIL 11 ITI &G B5012020 .23 123
<LFIL 111 43095 [50L2021 0.0% 1.23
-EFIL IV G081 [5OT2036 0.1 1.0
~IBRIY 5ME IT519% 159032024 0.01 1.30
-[BRD-Renewable Energy Loan 2072346 15012017 1RSI0 .01 1.5
-IBRIY EFIL 1% Limin [ncrease 931511 1512203% 0.39 1.51
-IBRD Innovative Access to Finance SE2ERT 1502042 0.41 186
54410601
European [nvesiment Bank (EIB)} 42TR T4 130A0E SLDE200E 0.01 i
kreditansiah Fiir Wiederubag (KFW) 1LATEYSE  MWI1072017 302032 0.01 115
Council of European Development Bank (CER) 63TE49 1802017 30062032 .01 i
Association of French Devebopment (AFLH 156007 AT 300112026 .25 1.23
Domestic bank bormowings 239360 IZNEZIT odal20ET 5.3 632
Syndicated Loan (*) D1943% 1507207 13odzm T 0. .33
European Bank for Beconstmuction and 217237 IENMVEHNT 1ODE2022 1.81 4.0
Development EBRDY
Ingesa T3HL ZIAEHNT 2414207 .04 .09
1slam Dievelopment Bank (1IDBE) 182,904 15902323 24052030 271 ER ]
International Finance Corporation 340675 15122NME 1822022 4.15 4.80
Credit Suisse 349056 ZIANILY  23MEIN2D 2,00 20m
Banca De Sabadell TEPREN MWIL202E 3000172028 1.37 1.37
JP Morgan Securigies 2991 OSAMIOINO  OSDEI0ZN el 2,50
Cresterreichische Entwicklungsbank AG (OEB) THO9E 1312206 IR1L2026 L6l 200
Citibank 141,044 Z3Awaing  26TMN2002 2.1 }.55
_ 1IL52H.5H3
Tatal foreign carrency borrowings 15981244
Turkish Lira Borrowings
Credit Suizse GRS 1TLOTIMY  lanl20zm 1.3 K
Dwmestic bank bommowings TR260 OXDLHMYT  GR072020 4,09 Q.03
Total Turkish Lira borrowings 147152
Total 16 127 4%

1"} Wilkin the framenark of the decisions taken by the Binard of Direciors of the Baek, on 1] June 20106, 1he Bank his wicd a
synuicated loam fram inbernalional markets in two tranches amouning to D50 07,5 millicn and Fuea 203 millsn weth mmuoriny
13 Jaly 2017 wmder the courdimation of Commerchank Aktiengesellschofi.
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20. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

M December 31 December

T 2016

Debt securities issued 1,746,229 1 486,732
Total 1746.229 3,486,732

Az of 27 October 2014, the Bank issued the debt instruments which have nominal value af JSD
350 Million, redemption date of 30 Cctober 2019 with Mxed interest rate of 5.375%, 5 vears
maturity and semiannual coupon payment.

Az of 22 April 2013, the Bank has performed the similar issuance of Eurobond with the nominal
amount of USD 350 Million. Interest rate of these debt instruments determined as 5.125% which
have the redemption date of 22 April 2020 with fixed interest rate, 5 years maturity and
semiannual coupon payment,

Selling of Greenbond which was issued by the Bank in abroad with nominal value of USD 300
Million, 5 years maturity and for financing the green and sustainable projects has been completed
on 18 May 2016. The retum of these bonds which have the redemption date of 18 May 2021 and
5 years maturity is determined as 3,048% and the coupon rate as 4.875%.

1. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December

m7 20146
Lneamed revenue 102,571 565,890
Payables to clearing accounts 38.971 14,60
Civarantecs given 28,254 0317
(hher 8. 486 _10.877
Total 178,242 182,684
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1. TAXATION
Corporate Tas

The Group is subject to taxation in accordance with ihe tax procedures and the legislation efTective
in Turkey. Corporate income tax is 20% (for 2018, 2019 and 2020, corporate tax income announced
as 22%) on the statutory corporate income tax base, which is determined by modifying accounting
income for certain exclusions and allowances for tax purposes as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: 20%4). Provision is made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
for the estimated charge based on the Group's results for the year.

According to the Corporate Tax Law, 75% of the capital gains arising from the sale of tangible
assets and investments owned for at least two years are exempted from corporate tax on the
condition that such gains are reflected in the equity from the date of the sale. The remaining 25%
of such capital gains are subject to corporate tax.

Turkish tax lepsslation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated
tax return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consclidated financial
statements, have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

In Turkey. advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. Advance corporate income tax rate
applied in 2017 is 20%% (31 December 2006: 20%). Losses can be carried forward for offset against
future taxable income for up to § yvears. However, losses cannol be carried back for offset against
profits from previous periods.

There is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their
tax returns between 1-25 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate, Tax
authurities may, however, examine such retuns and the underlying accounting records and may
revise assessments within five vears.

Income Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies, Income withholding tax applied in between
24 April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 23 July 2006, this rate has been changed
ta 15% upon the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No: 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends
incorporated in share capital are not subject 1o income withholding tax.

Dividends paid to the resident institutions and the institutions working through local offices or
representatives in Turkey are not subject to withholding tax. As per the decisions no,2000/14593
and 200% 14594 of the Council of Ministers published in the Official Gazette no.27130 dated 3
February 200%, certain duty rates included in the anticles no.15 and 30 of the new Corporate Tax
Law no.5320 are revised. Accordingly, the withholding tax rate on the dividend payments other
than the ones paid to the non-resident institutions generating income in Turkey through their
eperations or permanent representatives and the resident institutions is 13%. In applying the
withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals. the
withholding 1ax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treary Apreements are taken into account.
Appropriation of the retained earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution and
therefore is not subject to withholding tax.

B
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11, TAXATION {continued)

f cim

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax
Law with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”™. The General
Communiqué on  disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing sets  details about
implementation.

If a taxpayver enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods and services with related
parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length principle, then related profits
are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Sech disguised
profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible for corporate income
Lax purposes.

Deferred Tax

Taxes on income for the year also comprise deferred taxes. Deferred income tax is provided. using
the balance sheet method, on all taxable temporary differences arising between the camrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts wsed for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax liability and asset are recognized when it is probable that the fiture economic
benefits resulting from the reversal of temporary differences will flow to or from the Bank. Deferred
tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deferred tax asset can be wtilised. Currently enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates are used to determine deferved taxes on income. These differences usually result in the
recognition of revenwe and expenses in difTerent reporting periods for IFRS and 1ax purposes.

el
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12,

TAXATION [continued)

Deferred Tax (continued)

For calculation of deferred tax asset and Labilities, the rate of 22% (for 20018, 2019 and 2020,
corporate tax income announced as 22%) (31 December 2016: 20%) is used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applicd to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend o settle current tax
lizbilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liakilities will be realized simultaneously.

a} Statemvent of Nnancial position:

M December J1 December

T 06
Corporate tax provision I61.650 175,282
Corporate tax paid in advance (117.997) {170,216)
Corperate tax liability 43,662 3,066

by Statement of Profil or Loss:

“31 December 31 December

2017 2016
Corporate tax expense 61,650 98641
Deferred tax {income Vexpense {15,679 2231
145,980 121,011

The deferred taxes on major temporary differences as at the reporting dites are as Follows:
J1 December 31 December
2017 2016
Lean commissions 22563 17.378
[mpairment lesses on loans 34243 8948

Reserve for employvee severance indemnity

and unused vacation provision 2605 2,151
Valuation of marketable securities | 2149
Cithers N 1,842 3,851
Total deferred tax assel nl, 253 34.517
Waluation of marketable securities (20.635) -
Borrowing commissions { [0.Bat (8.791)
Accruals on derivative financial instruments (B.B23) (2.958)
Useful life differences on property and equipment (392} [457)
Others (6.804) (19,626)
Total deferred tax lability B (47.723) (31.832)
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22. TAXATION (continued)
Deferred Tax {continued )

Reflected as:
31 December 31 December
017 pd |11
[efermed tax assets 61,253 34,517
Deeferred tax liabilites (<) (47.723) (31,832)
Total deferred tax assets, net 13,50 1685

Taxation can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

%% 31 December % 31 December
2017 2016
nciliation of Taxation
Income before taxation 729,415 641,709
Tax at the statutory income tax rate of 20% 20000 (145.883) 20000 {120,342)
Tax effect of income that is deductible in
determining taxable income (0.31) 2248 (043 2617
Tax effect of undeductable expenses 0.04 (27 013 (90I)
Tax effect of dividend income (042} 3029 el 1621
Tax effect of other deductions 0.70 (5,103 1.00 16,0M5]
Income tax cxponse 19.70 (1438800 1912 (121,01)

Mavements in temporary differences for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Recognized in
other
Balance at Recognized in - comprehensive Balance at
i Janvary  proflt or ess income 3 December
e )
Loan commissions 17.378 51835 - 22,563
[mpairment losses on loons 5ol 25151 = 34.243
Reservie for employes severance indemmniry
and unused vacation provision 2,151 Eh ) 100 2.60F
Valumtion of marketable securities 2149 (19.981) (25033 [20.635)
Lseful life differences on property and
equipment 437} {133) 301
Rorrowing commissions (8,791 (2.078) - (RLERA
Accruals on derivative financial instruments [1958) (3.863) - (3.823)
Crher {15.775) B2944 (21310 (4,962}
Met deferred tax asset / (liahility) 1.6R5 15679 {4.83) 13.530
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22, TAXATION (continued)
Deferred Tax {continued )
Recopnized Recognized in other
Balance al in profit or comprehensive Balamce at
1 January lirnx income 31 December
2006
Loan commissiong La, 103 1,275 - I7378
Impairment losses en boans 8,485 503 - B.93%
Reszrve for employes severance imdemmity
and unused vacation provision 2,053 202 EEN 2151
Valuation of marketable securitics (2654 (4.887) 4,730 2149
Useful life differences on property and
equipment (2] (31} - (457
Revaluation of tangible assers (160l - [17a) {1,777}
Bommowing comimissions {72635 {1.526] - (8,791
Accruals on derivative financial instruments 5.543 (8.901) - (2.958)
Oither N {3007 (5581 - (13,998)
Met deferred tax asset { (liahility) 15,605 {2237 9.450 2683
23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
mT 2k
Movement of reserve for emplover severance indemniiy
Balance at | January 2,101 9067
Interest cost 549 832
Service cosl 712 1.506
Loss|{ Gain) due to Settlements / Reductions / Terminations 41 14
Payment during the year (1,335} (1.495)
Actuarial difference 393 (843
Balance at 31 December 9761 9,101
Maovement of provision for unesed vacalions
Balance at | January [.B03 L.70d4
Provision for the year 1,424 250
Provisions released (837) (147
Balance at 31 December 139 1,803
Movement of provision For honus payments
Balance at 1 January 10,909 8,996
Provision for the vear 12,363 10.865
Donus paid (10,34 {8,088}
Income and expenses of the prior period (193} iB64)
Balance at 31 December 12,735 10,909
Employvee benefits 24,586 L8123
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15

24.

15

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {continued )
a) Pension scheme

The Group has established two pension schemes, which are funded defined benefit plans covering
substantially all employees, The assets of the plan are held independently of the Group's assets in
the Pension Funds. These schemes are valued by independent actuaries every year. As per the latest
actuarial valuation carried out as ar 31 December 2017, the Bank has no obligation to book any
provision for the Pension Funds.

k) Reserve for employee severance indemnliy

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the CGroup entities are required to pay termination benefits to each
employee who has completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due
cause, is called up for military service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20
years for women) and reaches the retirement age (38 for women and 60 for men), Since the
legislation was changed on § September 1999, there are certain transitional provisions relating to
the length of service pricr to retirement.

Such payments are calculated on the basis of 30 days pay maximum full TL 4,732 as ar 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: full TL 4.297) per vear of employment at the rate of pay
applicable at the date of retirement or termination. Reserve for retirement pay is computed and
reflected in the conselidated financial statements on a current basis. The reserve has been calculated
by estimating the present value of future probable obligation of the Group arising from the
retirement of the employees. The caleulation was based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced
by the Government.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the calculations are as follows:

1T ik
Interest rate 12.00%4 10,3004
Expected rate of increase in salaries and eligible ceiling 7.00%% 6.530%%
Discount rate 4 674 1.76%

SUBORDINATED LOAN

Ag of 28 March 2017, the Parent Dank issued the sustainable subordinated debt securities which
have nominal value of USD 300 million, redemprion date of 29 March 2022 with fixed interest rate
of 7.6215% semiannual coupon payment. As of the end of the period, the value of the borrowing
instrument is TL 1,146,236, (31 December 2016: Mone).

PAYABLES TO MONEY MARKET

J1 December ﬁﬂrwmhrr
7 e

[nterbank money market transactions 202,143 610,144
[stanbul Stock Exchange money market transactions 499004 330,736

Tuotal 01,147 Dol 580

Payables to stock exchange money markets have a materity of 4-3 1days (31 December 2016: 1-31
days) with between 12.75% and 153.05% (31 December 2016: hetween 8% and 8.50%) of interest
rates.

04
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26. PROVISIONS
31 Devember J1 Decem ber
2017 ik
Free Provision RN -
Legal Cases 2,724 201
Unindemnified Moncash Loans =83 583
Oriher 31 E'J_
R ER] 61

7.

Free provision amounting to TL 60.000 has been provided by the Bank management in the current
period for possible results of the circumstances which may arise from possible changes in the

ecomomy and market conditions (31 December 201 6: None).
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2017, the avthorized and issued capital consists of 240.000.000.000 shares of
0.0 Turkish Lira {full) each as reflected in the statutory consolidated financial statements. Ordinary

shanes cary voting rights in proportion to their nominal value.

—

Authorkzed Faid-In

3 December 2017 Vo Capital Capital
Shareholders
T. I Bankasi AS {*} 071 | 217027 L.217.027
T. Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.0, 838 201,060 201,060
Under Custody at Merkezi Kaynt Kurulusu (Criher
Institutions and Individuals) _4n0.91 0%1.913 _9R1913

(LRI 2. A0 R LTI
g apital:
Mominal capital 2,400,000 2,400,000
Effect of inflation 13,563 13.563

1A11.5%a3 1413563
Authorized Paid-In

31 December 2016 % Capital Capital
Shareholders
T. I5 Bankasi AS 50.65 1,038,383 |.038.383
T. YVakiflar Bankasi T A0, B3R 171.738 171,738
Under Custody at Merkezi Kayit Kurulugu (Other
Institutions and Individuals) ana7 3_‘1: 9879 1o BT

JLCTRE 2 &, (0 250000
Components of Capital:
Maminal capital 2,050,000 2,050,000
Cifect of inflation 13.563 13,563

1063 563 L1563

{1 T. Iy Bankasi A §. Growp share (s calcubated by considering T. Iy Bankas A.5."s parchases in Free fuating of BIST s of 31

December 2017 of Bank shares

i
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T,

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

In the meeting of the General Assembly held on 23 March 2017, it has been resolved that, paid-in
capital of the Parent Bank will be increased from TL 2,050.000 to TL 2,400,000 by adding TL
350,000, In respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, all of this increase will be
incorporated from the profit of the year 2016. The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the
BRSA an 27 April 2017 and disclosed in the dated 12 June 2017 and numbered 9345 Turkish Trade
Registry Gazette,

In the meeting of the General Assembly held on 24 March 2016, it has been resolved that, paid-in
capital of the Parent Bank will be increased from TL 1,730,000 w TL 2,050,000 by adding TL
00000 In respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, all of this increase will be
incorporated from the profit of the year 2015, The increase in paid-in capital was approved by the
BRSA on & May 2016 and disclosed in the dated 4 July 2016 and numbered 9110 Turkish Trade
Repistry Gazette,

Legal reserves

The legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of the statutory profits at the rate of
5%, until the total reserve reaches a maximum of 20% of the entity's share capital. The second legal
reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% of all distributions in excess of 5% of the entity’s share
capital. The first and second legal reserves are not available for distribution unless they exceed 50%
of the share capital, but may be used to absorb losses in the event that the peneral reserve is
exhausted,

Fair valu r

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
firancial assets, until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

As of the third quarter of 2013, the Bank, has changed its accounting policies from historical cost
method o revaluation method for the real estate properties which are held for own use in
accordance with “IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment™. The positive difference between the
net book value of real estate property values and the expertise values which are determined by the
certifiedvaluation companies are recorded in “Revaluation surplus on tangible assets™ under the
sharcholders” equity.

Dividends

At the Ordinary General Assembly of the Bank held on 23 March 2017, it was decided to distribute
a dividend of TL 82,000 to sharcholders and TL 10.800 to personnel, members of Board of
Directars and to allocate TL 24,931 to legal reserves from retained eamings.
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

Non-controlling interests
A3 at the reporting date the non-controlling interests are as follows:

J1 December 31 December
- 7 2016
Capital 47,008 47.008
Share premium 163 163
Fair volue reserve 519 133
Legal reserve 118 LI&
Retained camings 10,558 18,070
Actuarial pamloss (IEd] =
Current period net income {3,700 (7.525)
51710 579049
I8. NET FEE AND COMISSTON INCOME
1 January- I January-
M December 31 Decem ber
2017 2016
Mon-Cash Loans 15625 10650
3ains on Brokerage Commissions 28941 21,715
Commissions from Initial Public Offering [.360 1]
Investment Fund Management [ncome 2,092 1.597
Other 5.734 2409
Fee and commission income 531,751 36,387
Mon-Cash Loans (2.40m (14013
Other (8.690) (9,969}
Fee amd commission expense {11,010y (11,370
MNet fee and commission income 42,662 25,017
29. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
I January= I January=-
31 December 31 December
- 7 016
Partfolio reserve Tor loans 6853 1931
Free provision GG -
Specific provision for loans 42636 1.756
Marketable securities impamment expenses 1,988 1810
Associates and subsidiaries 2402 -
Other 259 -
178,140 9497
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3. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

1 January- I January-
3 December 31 December
27 2004
Rent income 8936 T.731
Increase in value of investment properties 10,863 113
Provisions released 10651 94
Canin on sale of assets 244 233
Oher 2830 8
33 5da 13653
BVIDEND INCOME
1 January- I January-
31 December 31 December
m?z 2016
Available-for-sale securities 4,319 3,96
Trading securities - &
Chber 92 7,580
5421 11,486
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
- 7 2016
Personnel expenses 103,242 23,312
Other administrative expenses 34096 32.699
lmpairment in value of investment property - 14.269
Depreciation, impairment and amorisation 5997 6,836
Marketing expenses 1121 1.364
Taxes and dues other than on income 3.360 11162
(ther _ 20270 __ 6945
170,186 IhR.7TET
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SEGMENT REFORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which
it may carn revenues and incur expenses, ingluding revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Board of Directors (being chief operating decision maker) to make decisions about resources

allocated to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information
is available.

For management purposes, the Group is currently orpanized into two operating divisions —
“banking™ and “stock brokerage and other”. These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary serment information.

Principal activities of the Group are as follows:

Banking: investment and development bank with all corporate and commercial banking activities
excluding accepiing customer deposiis,

Stock brokerage and other; intermediary stock brokerage activities, portfolio management and
investment management and real estate investment trust activities,

L
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ASAT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

JETET ¥

M.

wregd 1 throusa urkish [ing i

RELATED PARTIES

!

+

For the purposes of the accompany ing consolidated financial statements, shareholders of the Group
and related companies, consolidated and non-consclidated equity participations and relaged
companies, directors and key management personnel together with their families and relaged
companies are referred to as "Related Parties” in this report. During the conduct of its business the
Ciroup had various significant ransactions and balances with Related Parties during the year.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the following balances due from or

due to related parties:

M December 3 December
017 214
Ralances with related parties

Loans and advances to customers 334400 384,327
= Bolimces with Parent Dok - FANRY)
- Dalmnces with other related parties 334401 363,196
Mon-cash loans 260 7878
Leans and advances to banks 1.517 22437
Available for sale investment securifies 12,922 12922
Oither assets 9 f
(Other liabilities it 25
Derivative financial instruments 444,536 417,925
I January = L January —
3 December 31 December
11 ) 2016

Transactinns with related parties
Income from associates 431861 IR.805
Dividend ingcome 5421 11.486
[nterest income 26,488 13,467
= Bafinces witk Parernl Bonk 252 L.08a
- Balunces with other related parties 26,206 12387
Foreign exchange gaim {loss), net 27,628 JlAwd
Met fee and commission income / {expense), net 426 295
= Balences witk Farernl Boank - LT
- Balinces with other related parties 426 223
{iher income 197 64
- Bafinces with Paremt Boank Ji 23
- Balences with opher refaved parties a7 ERT
Drerivative financial instruments pains/losses (30,731 B.0ck)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Group

Benefits provided to key management personnel in the current period amount to TL 15,828 (31

December 2016: TL 14,2330

1n3
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35, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Swap and forward agreements 25,47 827 19 378,549
Revocable and irrevocable commitments 6,132,575 B.524.308
Derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes 10,582,030 T.747 800
Dption agreements 4,651,972 6,531,936
Letters of guarantee 1,475,645 975,391
Letters of credst 1,079 303 676,367
Capital commitments for subsidiaries and associates (*) 78,890 68,367
Bank acceptences 18,763 17,450
Other commitments _ 71830 1754
49,139,855 44,437,712

(*) Includes the remaining amoeunt of the Parent Bank’s commitment to purchase the shares of
the fund as established with the name of Turkish Growth and Innovation Fund — TGIF which is
planned to be created by the European Investment Fund - EIF.

Fiduciary Activities

The Group provides investment management and advisory services to third partics. Those assets
that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

The nominal values of the assets held by the Group in ageney or custodian capacities and financial
assets under portfolio management amounted to TL 1299327 as at 31 December 2017 (3]
December 200 6: TL 1,340,913 As at 31 December 2017, securities af custody with market valug
amounted to TL 4,676,000 {31 December 2016: TL 3,442,799,

Secarites Blocked and Letters of Guarantes Civen to BT Colla nr ing o

hMarkets

As at 31 December 2017, according to the general requirements of the BIST, letters of guarantee
amounting to TL 406, 700 {31 December 2006: TL 433,593) had been obtained from various local
banks and were provided to BIST for bond and stock market transactions, Also, as at 31 December
2017 there is no letters of guarantee were given to the Capital Markets Board (31 December 2006
MNone).

The Group's trading securities piven as collateral or blocked is amounting to TL 263 as at the
reporting date (31 December 2016: TL 1.289).

Lifization
In the normal course of its operations, the Group can be constantly faced with legal disputes,

claims and complaints. The necessary provision, if any, for those cases are provided based on
manggement estimates and professional advice.

There are 56 lepal cases against the Group which are amounting to TL 4,976 as of the reporting
date (31 December 20016: TL 7.215- 48 lepal coses).
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued)

Tax Auwdit Committee inspectors made an investigation for the years 2008-2011 about the
payments made by the Bank and employees to “Tilrkiye Sinai Kalkinma Bankasi A_$. Mensuplan
Munzam Sosyal Givenlik ve Yardimlasma Vakfi” (Foundation) established in accordance with
the decisions of Turkish Commercial Law and Civil Law as made to all Foundations in the sector.
According to this investigation it has bren communicated that the amcunt the Bank is obliged to
pay 15 a benefit in the nature of fee for the members of Foundation worked at the time of payment,
the amount Foundation members are obliged to pay should not been deducted from the basis of
fee; accordingly fax audit report was issued with the claim that it should be taken penalized
income tax surchanpe / penalized stump duty deducted from allowance and total amount of TL
17,325 tax penalty notice relating to period in question to the Bank relying on this report. The
Bank assesses that the Bank’s practice is in compliance with the legislation and there is no legal
hasis for the fax administration’s suspended assessments, therefore, lawsoits have been filed
against the subjected assessments in various tax courts in istanbul, Ankara and {zmir.

Some of the kawsuits are decided favourable, remaining of lawsuits are decided unfavourable by the
tax courts of first instance. On the other hand, appeal and objection have been requested by the Bank
against the decision of the Court with respect to the Bank and by the administration against the
decision of the Court with respect to the administration and completion of appeal process is waited.
The tax and penalty notices related to the decision of the tax court of first instance against the Bank

are acerued by administration depending on legal process and as of 31 July 2014 the Bank has made
total payments amounting to TL 22,091,

A similar case has been submitted to the Constitutional Court (AYM) in the form of individual
remedies by the main sharcholder of the Bank in relation to the Bank's liabilites 10 pay, the
Constitutivnal Court gave the decision with court file number 20146192, According to court
decision published m the Official Gazette dated 21 February 20105 and numbersd 29274, the
assessments azainst the Bank was contrary to the principle of legality and the Bank s property rights
has been violated, This decision is considered to be a precedent for the Bank and an amount of T1.
12,730 corresponding to the portion that the Bank was obliged to pay for the related period is
recopnised a3 income as of December 31, 2016,

PlaintifTultimately filed a lawsuit against IBB and Karacan Yam at Pendik 2nd Court of First Instance
Pendorya Mall claiming the road intersects his own property and demanding compensation
amounting TL 7. TSKB GYO has been involved in the lawsuit as interventing party.

Relating to immovable property, subject of ligation discovery review and expert reports were
submitted to the eourt file. Objections to the report and statement of TSKB GYO has been given.
IBB Presidency has declared that expropriation proceedings related to the subject have been initiated.
For this reason, lawsuit was removed from “Possessory Actions™ and converted to the “Confiscating
without expropriating” by the judge.

Accepting in the new case, the plaintift claimed compensation from the Administration and in ceder
to determine the amount of compensation the Court decided an expert examination since the
mnformation provided by the Land Registry and the Municipality was not deemed sufTicient.

Expent reports submitted to the Court on 30 May 20013 and the Court decided to add Pendik
Municipaliry as a defendant in the case. At the latest hearing on 24 December 2013 it was decided to
aceept the expert reports and Pendik Municipality to pay the relevant amount (TL 645 to the plaintif.
The reasoned decision has been notified. the decision which has been appealed by the appellant and
the respondent Pendik Municipality has turned deteriosate the Supreme Court decision was a request
fior the comection requested by the Istanbul Metropolitan Municipality {[IMM). The decision has been
requested adjustment by IMM and plaintifT Saglam Sang ve Paz, A.S. (Malazlar A.5.). Breaking
decision of the Supreme Court is expected to evaluate the requests for correetion of decision.
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35,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

{ther

The Group's 9 branches, including branches of subsidiaries, are subject to operational leasing.
Additicnally, 24 cars and 291 computers are within the context of operational leasing. The Group
has no liability for operational leases as of the reporting date (31 December 2016 1 head office, 11
branches, 25 cars and and 160 computers are subject to operational leasing).

36, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is party to a variety of foreign currency forward contracts, swaps and options in the
management of its exchange rate exposures. The instruments are primarily denominated in TL, US
Dollar and Ewro,

The Dank has entered into extinguishing cross-currency interest rate swaps as part of its strategy to
hedge TL denominated fixed rate asscts. These swap arrangements provide that, on the occurrence
of certain credit-refated events in relation o the company (such as failure to make a payment), the
swap arrangements may immediately terminate with no further payments due end payable by either
party. Asof 31 December 2017, the fair value of such swaps is TL 134,631 with a total outstanding
nominal value of USD 200 million. The average manrity of such swaps range between 2020 and
2021 vears.

m7 2017 ie 2016

Assels Liabilities Assets Liahilities

Currency swaps 206,665 (133, 793) 168.045 (141417
Options 42,519 (42.423) 125,627 (123,627}
Foreign currency forward contracts 21,909 (21,66%9) 22,109 (17873}
Interest rate swaps 55,605 {32.518) 58,255 (35,880)

326,788 (131,403) IT4036  (320.79T)

Drivarives held for risk mamragentent

[Dze to the Bank and its afTiliates' overall interest rate risk position and funding structure, its risk
management policies require that it should minimize its exposwre to changes in interest rtes within
certain guidelines. Interest rate swaps are used for this puposes as derivative Mnancizl instruments.

In this respect, the fixed mte Euwrobond issued by the Bank and a portion of fixed rate funds
borrowed are subject to fair value hedge accounting. The Bank enters into interest rate swap
agreements im order o hedge the change in fair values of its fixed rate financial linbilities. The
changes in the fair value of the hedged fixed rate financial liabilities and hedging interest rate swaps
are recognised under the statement of profitloss. At the beginning and later period of the hedging
transaction, the aforementioned hedging transactions are expected to offset changes cocurred in the
relevant period of the hedging transaction and hedged risk {atributable to hedging risk) and
effectiveness tests are performed in this regand.

The fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are as follows:

mT 7 2016 2016

Instrument rype Assets  Liahilities Assets  Liabilities
Interest Rate Swap - {78,682} 272 51.433)
- (TR.682) 272 (51413)
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3. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Al the reporting date, the total amounts of outstanding derivatives to which the Group is commirted

are as follows:

M December 31 December

2017 2016

Forward foreign exchange contracts — buy 2,413,168 367,798
Forward foreign exchange contracts - sell 2412937 563,317
Currency swaps — buy 3,373,706 3822916
Currency swaps — sell 3433776 1650808
Interest rate swaps — buy 6.607.120 5.386.853
Interest rate swaps - sell 6607120 5386855
Currency option — buy 2325 986 1.465.968
Currency option — sefl 2,325,986 1,465,968
hher — sell 72,830 117,544

37. DIVIDENDS

In March 2017, dividends amounting to TL 92,801 were paid. In March 2016, the dividends paid
were TL 61,839
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39,

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year antributable to ordinary
sharcholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

A summary of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the yvear ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 and the basic eamings per share calculation is as follows:

1 Januiry - 1 January =

31 December 31 Decem ber

017 016

Mumber of shares outstanding at 1 January 2. 060,000,000 1,730,000, D04

New sfares issped

Conversion of existing reserves ' 350.000.0¢0 300,000k, 000

Muomber of shares nutstanding at the period end 2, W00, DN 250,000, 1M
Weighted average aumber of shares during the

period X A0 INCHD, DD 2 050,000, M)

Profit for equity holders of the Bank SB9,137 488,223

Basic and diluted earnings per share {in full Kuros) 0.24%% 02382

M Capital iniresce & made thrmugh mternal resaurces and prier pericod's eamdngs per shase flpure B8 revsed by edng the nuwrsker of

shies subsequent o the capilal incroase.
Theris 13 e dilition of s as of 31 Deaomber 3017

RATINGS

As al and for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank s, ratings assigned by international rating

agencies are a3 follows,

Moody's — 200 March 2017 Rating Dutlook
Long-term Foreign Currency [ssuer Rating Bal Mepgative
Short-term Foreien Curmrency Issuer Rating MNP

Long-term Local Currency Issuer Rating Bal Negative
Short-term Local Currency Issuer Rating NP -
Long-term Forgign Currency Senior Debi Bal MNepgative
Fitch Ratings— 4 October 2017 Rating Oatleok
Long-term Foreign Currency Issuer Defauli Rating BB+ Stable
Long-term Local Currency Issuer Default Rating BEG- Stable
Short-term Foreign Currency |ssuer Defaukt Rating B -
Short-term Local Currency [ssuer Default Rating F3 .
Mational Long Term Rating AAA Stable
Support Rating 3 -
Support Rating Floor BB+ -
Senior Unsecured Long Term Debt BA+
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING FPERIOD

As of 16 January 2018, the Bank issued a debt instrument which has nominal valee of USD 330
million, redemption date of 16 Janwary 2023 with Axed interest rate of 5.50%, five years maturity
and semiannual cowpon payments,

In the meeting of the General Assembly held on 23 March 2018, it has been resolved that, paid-in
capital of the Parent Bank will be increased from TL 2,400,000 to TL 2,800,000 by adding TL
400,000. In respect of the resolution of the General Assembly, all of this increase will he
incorporated from the profit of the vear 2017, The applications w BRESA and CMB related o
increase has been performed, and the process has not been finalised as of the report date,

At the Ordinary General Assembly of the Bank held on 23 March 2018, it was decided to distribute
a dividend of TL 96,000 to sharcholders and TL 13,862 to personnel, members of Board of
Directars from retained eamings.



